
 
 A meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL 

WELL-BEING) will be held in the CIVIC SUITE 0.1A, PATHFINDER 
HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on 
TUESDAY, 7 DECEMBER 2010 at 7:00 PM and you are requested to 
attend for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 

 Contact 
(01480) 

 
 APOLOGIES   

 
 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Panel held on 2nd November 2010. 
 
2 Minutes. 
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or 
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation to 
any Agenda Item. Please see Notes 1 and 2 overleaf. 
 
2 Minutes. 
 

 

3. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN  (Pages 7 - 
10) 

 
 

 A copy of the current Forward Plan, which was published on 11th 
November 2010 is attached. Members are invited to note the Plan 
and to comment as appropriate on any items contained therein. 
 
10 Minutes. 
 

Mrs H Taylor 
388008 

4. CAR PARKING AT HINCHINGBROOKE HOSPITAL   
 

 

 To receive a presentation from the Head of Facilities and Facilities 
Business Manager, Hinchingbrooke Hospital, reviewing the revised 
car parking pricing structure since it came into effect on 1st July 2009. 
 
20 Minutes. 
 

 

5. STUDY: CONSULTATION PROCESS  (Pages 11 - 30) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services 
on Panel’s consultation processes study. 
 
20 Minutes. 
 
 

A Roberts 
388015 



 
6. HUNTINGDONSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 

VIEWS ON CCTV  (Pages 31 - 34) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Chairman of the Huntingdonshire 
Community Safety Partnership outlining the views of the Partnership 
in respect of CCTV. 
 
20 Minutes.  
 

Dr S Lammin 
388280 

7. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  (Pages 35 - 44) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of People, Performance and 
Partnerships containing details of the Council’s performance against 
its priority objectives. 
 
15 Minutes. 
 

H Thackray / 
D Buckridge 
388035 /  
388065 

8. CONSULTATION: EAST OF ENGLAND AMBULANCE SERVICE 
NHS TRUST  (Pages 45 - 70) 

 
 

 To receive a report from the Head of Democratic and Central 
Services on the East of England Ambulance Services consultation on 
plans to become an NHS Foundation Trust. 
 
15 Minutes. 
 

A Roberts 
388015 

9. REPORT OF THE CABINET  (Pages 71 - 72) 
 

 

 To receive the Cabinet’s views on the Panel’s views on the 
Cambridgeshire Local Investment Plan and Homelessness Strategy: 
Consultation Draft. 
 
10 Minutes. 
 

Mrs H Taylor 
388008 

10. CAMBRIDGESHIRE ADULTS WELL-BEING AND HEALTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  (Pages 73 - 78) 

 
 

 To receive an update from Councillor R J West on the outcome of 
recent meetings of the Cambridgeshire Adults Well-Being and Health 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 
5 Minutes. 
 

 

11. WORK PLAN STUDIES  (Pages 79 - 84) 
 

 

 To consider, with the aid of a report by the Head of Democratic and 
Central Services, the current programme of Overview and Scrutiny 
studies. 
 
15 Minutes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 



 
12. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL WELL-BEING) - 

PROGRESS  (Pages 85 - 98) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services 
on the Panel’s programme of studies. 
 
15 Minutes. 
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 

13. SCRUTINY   
 

 

 To scrutinise decisions as set out in the Decision Digest (TO 
FOLLOW) and to raise any other matters for scrutiny that fall within 
the remit of the Panel. 
 
5 Minutes. 
 

 

   
 Dated this 29 day of November 2010  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive  
 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent 

than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, their 
family or any person with whom they had a close association; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any 

company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has 

knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of 
the public interest. 

 
Please contact Miss H Ali, Democratic Services Officer, Tel No: (01480) 388006 / email: 
Habbiba.Ali@huntsdc.gov.uk if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to 
tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information on any 
decision taken by the Panel. 
Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer. 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 



 
Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 

www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 
 
 

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports 
or would like a large text version or an audio version  

please contact the Democratic Services Manager and  
we will try to accommodate your needs. 

 
 

Emergency Procedure 
In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency 
exit. 

 



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

(SOCIAL WELL-BEING) held in the Civic Suite 0.1A, Pathfinder 
House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Tuesday, 2 
November 2010. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor S J Criswell – Chairman. 
   
  Councillors P L E Bucknell, S Cawley, 

B S Chapman, Mrs K E Cooper, J J Dutton, 
Mrs P A Jordan, P G Mitchell, P D Reeve and 
R J West. 

   
Co-opted Member – Mr R Coxhead. 
 

 APOLOGY: An Apology for absence from the meeting 
was submitted on behalf of Mrs M Nicholas. 

 
 
50. MINUTES   

 
 The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 5th October 2010 

were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

51. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 Councillor S J Criswell declared a personal interest in Minute Nos. 
10/54, 55 and 56 by virtue of his membership of Cambridgeshire 
County Council and Somersham Parish Council. 
 
Councillors J J Dutton, P D Reeve and R J West declared personal 
interests in Minute Nos. 10/54, 55 and 56 by virtue of their 
membership of Cambridgeshire County Council. 
 
Councillor P G Mitchell declared a personal interest in Minute No. 
10/56 by virtue of his association with the Stilton Skate Park. 
 

52. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN   
 

 The Panel considered and noted the current Forward Plan of Key 
Decisions (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) which 
had been prepared by the Leader of the Council for the period 1st 
November 2010 to 28th February 2011. 
 

53. HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY: CONSULTATION DRAFT   
 

 (Councillor A Hansard, Executive Councillor for Housing and Public 
Health, was in attendance for consideration of this item). 
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Housing Services 
(a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) seeking the 
Cabinet’s endorsement of a draft Homelessness Strategy for the 
purposes of consultation. By way of background, Councillor A 
Hansard, Executive Councillor for Housing and Public Health, 

Agenda Item 1

1



informed the Panel that the Homelessness Act 2002 placed a 
statutory duty on the Council to review the previous Strategy every 
five years and that the review was now due. 
 
The Panel were advised that the Strategy outlined a future strategic 
direction for homelessness prevention, which was a matter of growing 
concern for the Council. Members noted that increased financial and 
resource pressures and changes by the Government to the housing 
benefit system, which would take effect from April 2011, would add to 
increasing levels of demand for housing advice and of homelessness 
within the District.  
 
The Panel’s attention was drawn to the trends in homelessness 
experienced locally over the previous ten years. Members were 
advised that the reductions in homelessness that had been achieved 
were largely attributable to the use of a number of preventative 
measures, including the Court Advocacy Service, the Young Persons 
Mediation Service and the Rent Deposit/Rent In Advance Scheme. 
Members were advised that the latter had proved to be the most 
effective and opportunities to maximise its use were currently being 
explored by the Council. In response to questions by Members it was 
reported that the only cost to the Council associated with the Scheme 
arose from customer defaults on loans but that their use was limited 
by the debt allowance. 
 
The Panel discussed the financial and other resources required to 
achieve the Strategy’s Action Plan. It was noted that Government 
funding for the Homelessness Prevention Budget might not continue 
beyond 2010/11. The Panel registered concern that funding had not 
been identified for a number of actions contained within the Action 
Plan. In response, the Head of Housing Services reported that the 
document had been compiled in advance of the Government’s 
Comprehensive Spending Review announcement, at a time when a 
number of uncertainties surrounding the Council’s budget process 
and efficiency programme existed. The Panel were assured that the 
Strategy would be updated to take into account these developments; 
however, the challenge to identify resources would remain. 
 
Other matters that were discussed included the types of 
accommodation available, migrant workers and the factors that 
constrained the Council from using exception sites within the District 
to tackle homelessness. Having expressed their satisfaction with the 
content of the Strategy, the Panel 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that subject to the comments outlined above, the 
content of the draft Homelessness Strategy be 
endorsed for submission to the Cabinet; and 

 
(b) that the Cabinet be recommended to approve the draft 

Homelessness Strategy for wider consultation with 
partners, stakeholders and customers. 

 
 
 

2



54. CAMBRIDGESHIRE LOCAL INVESTMENT PLAN   
 

 (Councillor D B Dew, Executive Councillor for Planning Strategy and 
Transport was in attendance for consideration of this item). 
 
With the aid of a joint report by the Heads of Housing Services and of 
Planning Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
the Panel gave consideration to the draft Cambridgeshire Local 
Investment Plan (CLIP) on which the Council had been consulted. 
The Executive Councillor for Planning Strategy and Transport 
informed the Panel of the background to the Plan, which had been 
prepared for submission to the Homes and Communities Agency 
(HCA) by Cambridgeshire Horizons in conjunction with 
Cambridgeshire local authorities. The Plan was intended to facilitate 
the delivery of investment in a range of housing, infrastructure, 
regeneration and community activities taking into account locally 
determined priorities and a number of existing Countywide strategies 
and plans. It identified investment needs across Cambridgeshire and 
would primarily be used as evidence to support bids to draw external 
funding into the area.  
 
With regard to the complex structure of partnerships that existed 
across the County, the Panel was informed that the establishment of 
a Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) would assist with streamlining 
the current framework as well as with promoting the adoption of cross 
boundary working practices. While some Members were of the view 
that the funds allocated by the HCA should be devolved to local 
authorities, others argued that there were advantages to undertaking 
co-ordinated work on a geographical basis greater than that covered 
by individual local authorities. In noting that, as a result of the 
Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review, the HCA’s funding 
would be reduced by 50%, Members acknowledged the importance of 
the CLIP in enabling the Council effectively to compete for financial 
resources. In addition, the Panel drew attention to potential problems 
associated with variations in boundaries according to the context and 
level of activity. 
 
The Panel discussed the local road network infrastructure and 
expressed concern at the way upgrades or improvements to the A14, 
A428 and the A1 were being prioritised. The implications of this in 
encouraging housing and economic growth also were considered. 
Members were of the opinion that the road network infrastructure 
should be viewed in the national context. Having specific regard to the 
A428, the Panel were advised that work to compile a Master Plan for 
the St Neots area would be undertaken in the future in conjunction 
with the Highways Agency and East Coast Mainline Rail Services. 
The Panel also highlighted the need to upgrade the A14 as it played a 
significant part in the road network infrastructure on the local, national 
and European levels. 
 
In response to a question on the targets contained in the Plan for the 
completion of housing schemes in Huntingdonshire scheduled for 
2010/11 to 2013/14, Members were informed that the purpose of the 
HCA was the delivery of affordable housing. The Panel suggested 
that a more realistic approach should be adopted given that the 
figures presented were considered to be low. The reliability of the 
data generally presented by the County Council contained within the 

3



CLIP in respect of population projections for the District was also 
questioned and Members suggested that the data employed should 
be updated. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion the Panel requested that a further 
report was submitted to a future meeting on the implications of the 
CLIP for local housing, including the potential shortfalls in the delivery 
of affordable housing within the District. Whereupon, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that subject to the comments outlined above, the 
Cambridgeshire Local Investment Plan be endorsed for 
submission to the Cabinet. 

 
55. MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS (PLANNING 

OBLIGATIONS)   
 

 (Councillor C R Hyams, Executive Councillor for Operational and 
Countryside Services, was in attendance for consideration of this 
item). 
 
The Panel gave consideration to a report by the Head of People, 
Performance and Partnerships (a copy of which is appended in the 
Minute Book) which provided an update on the receipt and 
expenditure by the Council of money negotiated under Section 106 
Agreements.  
 
The Scrutiny and Review Manager reported that the Section 106 
Agreement Advisory Group had considered the Panel’s suggestion 
that a project plan should be produced for each scheme but had 
concluded that they were satisfied with the availability of information 
already contained within the existing monitoring report. The Advisory 
Group also had discussed whether scrutiny of Section 106 
Agreements was being duplicated in the current arrangements. 
 
The Panel reiterated the view that a project plan should be adopted to 
enable more effective monitoring to take place, which would better 
assist Members in understanding projects. Having discussed a way 
forward, Councillor P G Mitchell undertook to report the Panel’s views 
at the next meeting of the Development Management Panel. 
Whereupon, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 that the contents of the report be noted. 
 

56. PROVISION OF PLAY FACILITIES   
 

 (Councillor C R Hyams, Executive Councillor for Operational and 
Countryside Services, was in attendance for consideration of this 
item). 
 
Pursuant to Minute Nos. 10/31 and 10/37, the Panel received and 
noted a report by the Service Development Manager (a copy of which 
is appended in the Minute Book) on expenditure incurred by the 
Council on the maintenance of outdoor youth facilities together with 

4



details of where the funds had been allocated. It was noted that 
estimated annual revenue costs amounted to £22,300, which was 
spread across six skate park facilities within the District. 
 
Following discussion on the cost of inspection, assessments and 
insurance, the Scrutiny and Review Manager undertook to circulate to 
the Panel details of other organisations that could provide these 
services. 
 

57. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT   
 

 With the aid of a report by the Cabinet (a copy of which is appended 
in the Minute Book) the Panel were acquainted with Executive 
Members’ deliberations and decisions in response to a joint report by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Panels on the Council’s performance 
against its priority objectives (Minute No. 10/34 refers). Members 
were advised that the recommendation concerning external 
consultants had been referred back to the Corporate Plan Working 
Group for further review including the criteria used in the appointment 
of consultants and an assessment of the cost and value gained from 
using them. It was likely, however, that this work would be undertaken 
by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-Being). 
 

58. CAMBRIDGESHIRE ADULTS WELLBEING AND HEALTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 
 Councillor R J West reported that a meeting of the Cambridgeshire 

Adults Well-Being and Health Scrutiny Committee had recently been 
held at which consideration had been given to the Older Peoples’ 
Mental Health Strategy. The Committee’s in this respect were 
currently ongoing. 
 

59. WORK PLAN STUDIES   
 

 The Panel received and noted a report by the Head of Democratic 
and Central Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute 
Book) containing details of studies currently being undertaken by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panels. Members were reminded of the 
opportunity they had to participate in any of the other Overview and 
Scrutiny Panels’ studies. 
 

60. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL WELL-BEING) - 
PROGRESS   

 
 The Panel received and noted a report by the Head of Democratic 

and Central Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute 
Book) which contained details of actions taken in response to recent 
discussions and decisions. The Chairman reported that an 
announcement by the Strategic Health Authority on which bidder 
would take over management of Hinchingbrooke Hospital would be 
made later in the month. 
 
The Scrutiny and Review Manager was requested to establish with 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital’s Head of Facilities the process through 
which the Panel would have an input into the Hospital’s review of its 
revised car parking pricing structure and concessions scheme. The 
Panel were advised that the Consultation Processes study would be 

5



pursued further at the next meeting and that an invitation to attend 
would be extended to the Policy and Strategic Services Manager. 
 
The Chairman reported on a forthcoming meeting organised by the 
County Council for crime and disorder Scrutiny Chairmen to discuss 
opportunities for joint scrutiny working. Following a suggestion made 
by a Member, the Chairman agreed to raise CCTV as a possible 
study area at the meeting. 
 

61. SCRUTINY   
 

 The 108th Edition of the Digest of Decisions was received and noted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 

6



 

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

Prepared by Councillor I C Bates  
Date of Publication: 11 November 2010 
For Period: 1 December 2010 to 31 March 2011 

 

Membership of the Cabinet is as follows:- 
 

Councillor I C Bates  - Leader of the Council 4 Church End 
Hilton 
Huntingdon   PE28 9NJ 
 

Tel:  01480 830250          E-mail:  Ian.Bates@huntsdc.gov.uk 
Councillor L M Simpson  - Deputy Leader of the Council with Special  

  Responsibility for HQ/Accommodation 
45 Devoke Close 
Stukeley Meadows 
Huntingdon 
Cambs     PE29 6XE 
 

Tel:  01480 388946        E-mail:  Mike.Simpson@huntsdc.gov.uk 
Councillor K J Churchill - Executive Councillor for Resources 

   and Policy 
51 Gordon Road 
Little Paxton 
St Neots 
PE19 6NJ 
 
Tel:  01480 352040 E-mail:  Ken.Churchill@huntsdc.gov.uk 

Councillor D B Dew - Executive Councillor for Planning Strategy and  
  Transport 

4 Weir Road 
Hemingford Grey 
Huntingdon  
PE28 9EH 
 

Tel:  01480 469814        E-mail:  Douglas.Dew@huntsdc.gov.uk  
Councillor J A Gray - Executive Councillor for Environment and    

  Information Technology 
 

Shufflewick Cottage 
Station Row 
Tilbrook 
PE28 OJY 
 

Tel:  01480  861941      E-mail:  JG@novae.com 

A
genda Item

 3

7



 
Councillor C R Hyams - Executive Councillor for Operational 

  and Countryside Services 
22 Bluegate 
Godmanchester 
Huntingdon 
Cambs PE29 2EZ 
 

Tel:  01480 388968         E-mail:  Colin.Hyams@huntsdc.gov.uk  
Councillor A Hansard - Executive Councillor for Housing and 

  Public Health 
78 Potton Road 
Eynesbury 
St Neots 
PE19 2NN 
 

Tel:  01480 388942      E-mail:  Andrew.Hansard@huntsdc.gov.uk 
Councillor Mrs D C Reynolds - Executive Councillor for Leisure, Law, 

  Property and Governance 
17 Virginia Way 
St Ives 
PE27 6SQ 
 

Tel:  01480 388935   E-mail:  Deborah.Reynolds@huntsdc.gov.uk 
Councillor T V Rogers   - Executive Councillor for Finance and 

  Customer Services 
 

Honeysuckle Cottage 
34 Meadow Lane 
Earith 
Huntingdon     PE28 3QE 
 

Tel:  01487 840477          E-mail:  Terence.Rogers@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

Any person who wishes to make representations to the decision maker about a decision which is to be made may do so by contacting Mrs Helen Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer on 
01480 388008 or E-mail:   Helen.Taylor@huntsdc.gov.uk  not less than 14 days prior to the date when the decision is to be made. 
 

The documents available may be obtained by contacting the relevant officer shown in this plan who will be responsible for preparing the final report to be submitted to the decision maker on the 
matter in relation to which the decision is to be made.  Similarly any enquiries as to the subject or matter to be tabled for decision or on the availability of supporting information or documentation 
should be directed to the relevant officer. 
 

Roy Reeves 
Head of Administration 
 

Notes:- (i) Additions/significant changes from the previous Forward are annotated *** 
 (ii) For information about how representations about the above decisions may be made please see the Council’s Petitions Procedure at http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/NR/rdonlyres/3F6CFE28-
C5F0-4BA0-9BF2-76EBAE06C89D/0/Petitionsleaflet.pdf or telephone 01480 388006 

 

 

Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 

8



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 
 
Environment Strategy 
Review 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
16 Dec 2010 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Dr Paul Jose, Head of Environmental 
Management Tel No 01480 388332 or e-mail 
Paul.Jose@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
J A Gray 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
One Leisure, St. Ives 
-  Proposal for 
Development 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
16 Dec 2010 
 

 
None 
 

 
Simon Bell, General Manager, One Leisure 
Tel No. 01480 388049 or e-mail 
Simon.Bell@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
Mrs D C 
Reynolds 
 

 
Social Well-
Being 
 

 
Asset Management 
Plan - Annual Report 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
16 Dec 2010 
 

 
Previous Cabinet 
Reports 
 

 
Keith Phillips, Estates and Property Manager 
Tel No. 01480 388260 or e-mail 
Keith.Phillips@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
Mrs D C 
Reynolds 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Home Improvement 
Agency Review - 
Future Delivery Model 
Consultation 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
20 Jan 2011 
 

 
None 
 

 
Steve Plant, Head of Housing Services Tel 
No. 01480 388240 or e-mail 
Steve.Plant@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
A Hansard 
 

 
Social Well-
Being 
 

 
Local Transport Plan 
(LTP3) 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
Draft Local Transport 
Plan 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No 01480 388430 or e-mail 
Paul.Bland@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Endorse as Council 
policy  

 
D B Dew 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Open Space Strategy 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
Open Space Strategy 
 

 
Mr Howard Thackray, Policy and Strategic 
Services Manager Tel No 01480 388035 or 
e-mail Howard.Thackray@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Planned with Town 
and Parish Councils  

 
C Hyams 
 

 
Social Well-
Being 
 

 
Cambridgeshire 
Green Infrastructure 
Strategy 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
Cambs County 
Council led project 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No 01480 388430 or  e-mail 
Paul.Bland@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Endorse as Council 
policy (further 
details required).  

 
D B Dew 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

9



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 
 
Residential Travel 
Plan 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
Cambs County 
Council led project 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or e-mail 
Paul.Bland@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Endorse as Council 
policy (further 
details required).  

 
D B Dew 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Budget and MTP 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
Draft MTP previous 
year's budget report 
various annexes 
 

 
Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services 
Tel No. 01480 388103 or e-mail 
Steve.Couper@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Overview and 
Scrutiny  (Economic 
Well-Being)  

 
T V Rogers 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Treasury 
Management 
Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
Previous year's 
strategy 
 

 
Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services 
Tel No. 01480 388103 or e-mail 
Steve.Couper@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Overview and 
Scrutiny (Economic 
Well-Being)   

 
T V Rogers 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Contributions 
Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
Supplementary 
Planning 
Document*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Mar 2011 
 

 
Local Investment 
Framework 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or e-mail 
Paul.Bland@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Endorse as Council 
policy  

 
D Dew 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 

10



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
PANEL (SOCIAL WELL-BEING) 

7TH DECEMBER 2010 
 
 

STUDY: CONSULTATION PROCESS 
(Report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Following discussion on a recent consultation, the Chairman has 

suggested that a review should be undertaken of the Council’s current 
consultation processes. Perceived weaknesses in procedures adopted 
for recent consultations, adverse reactions to decisions following 
consultations and the perception by some residents that the Council 
does not listen to or consider the views of local residents are the 
justifications for the study. The purpose of the study is to determine 
whether the approach taken to consultation is suitable and consistent 
across the authority. This report summarises progress to date and 
discusses a number of issues that have being identified for further 
consideration.  

 
2. STUDY METHODOLOGY 

 
2.1 In accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny study methodology, a 

study template has been completed. The template is reproduced in at 
Appendix A. The Policy and Strategic Services Manager has delivered 
a presentation on the role of the Policy and Research Team in offering 
advice and guidance to internal service departments on consultation 
and research methodologies. Copies of the Consultation and 
Engagement Strategy and associated Guidance have been circulated, 
together with a link to the consultation calendar and database. The 
latter contains details of consultations that have previously been 
undertaken by the Council 

 
3. INVESTIGATIONS 
 
3.1 The Panel has referred to the cost and role of Market Research UK 

(MRUK) in assisting the Council with various consultations. MRUK 
have agreed a County-wide schedule of prices for undertaking 
consultations, which has realised savings compared with the cost of 
entering into contracts with external companies for individual pieces of 
work. However, Policy Officers in Cambridgeshire have been engaged 
in discussions on whether they might collaborate to provide the same 
service internally at a further reduced cost to Cambridgeshire Councils. 
Further information can be found on page 15 of the Council’s 
Consultation Guidance. 

 
Pre-consultation Considerations 

 
3.2 The Panel has suggested that it would be useful to introduce a 

requirement that the benefit / value of undertaking consultation 
exercises are formally assessed prior to commencement. Some 
consultations are undertaken because there is a legal requirement to 
do so; however, there is some discretion over whether and how others 
take place. There should be rigorous assessment of whether 
consultations are justified. 

 

Agenda Item 5

11



 2 

Consultation methodology 
 
3.3 The Council has produced a substantial amount of guidance on 

consultation methodology. It covers, for example, consultation 
techniques, types of questions to ask and data collection. The 
Guidance has been circulated to Members and, as a result, a number 
of matters have arisen that will be considered in the course of the 
study. Some of these are referred to in the existing Guidance. The 
question of the level of responses to postal surveys is addressed on 
pages 5 and 6 and the structure of questions is discussed on pages 10 
and 11. 

 
3.4 Considerable importance has been attached to communication 

throughout the consultation process. It is held that effective 
communication ensures consultations incorporate all sectors of the 
community including those in isolated rural areas. The Council has a 
separate Communications and Marketing Strategy, which can be found 
here 
http://teams.huntsdc.gov.uk/PAS/cam/Documents/Communications%2
0and%20Marketing%20Strategy%202008%20-%202011.doc. It would 
probably make the study too unwieldy to review this Strategy as well. 
However, the view has strongly been expressed that communication 
needs to be taken into account including the language used in the 
course of consultations. Publicity for the purpose of consultation is an 
area that has already been identified as requiring attention. As part of 
these investigations Members should have in mind the fact that the 
Council has adopted a Customer Service Strategy: ‘Customer Insight’, 
one of the aims of which is to be good at communicating with and 
listening to people and organisations. A copy of this strategy is 
attached at Appendix B. 

 
Other Considerations 

 
3.5 Other considerations relating to the consultation methodology that 

Members have identified for investigation during the study are: 
 

• the role of community / pressure groups; 
 

• public perceptions of the consultation process; 
 

• consultation in rural areas (see Consultation Guidance on 
Accessibility p 25), and  

 
• the use of Neighbourhood forums to promote consultations. 

 
Clearly, given the financial pressures on the Council, it will be 
necessary to look at financial aspects of consultation. The cost of 
different survey methods will form an important part of the study. In 
addition, future savings might be achieved if the Council adopts a more 
rigorous approach to determining whether consultation is necessary. 

 
Consultation Outcomes 

 
3.6 The Panel has given preliminary consideration to what happens once a 

consultation exercise has closed. The Council’s Guidance contains 
advice on data analysis and on how results are interpreted on page 14. 

12



 3 

Members have suggested that it would be helpful to interpret the data 
that is collated on a Ward level though this should be subject to cost / 
benefit analysis and acknowledgement that the data generated from 
small areas will be limited. This relates to consultation’s ability to 
support the role of Members and help Members engage with their 
constituents. 

 
Post Consultation 

 
3.7 One of the main reasons that this study is being undertaken is to 

examine whether more should be done to manage the presentation of 
subsequent decisions. It is suggested that for consultation to have 
value and to demonstrate that the views elicited have been taken into 
account, the Council should explain to the public the reasons why a 
chosen course of action has been taken following a consultation 
exercise. 

 
Assessment of the Outcome and Effectiveness of Consultations. 

 
3.8 The view has been expressed that there should be a process of review 

after each consultation has been completed. The Council’s Guidance 
on consultation contains the following: 

 
 “Evaluating the effectiveness of consultation is vital to ensure 

effective future consultations. The key issues are: 
 

• Did we consult the right people in the right way? 
• Did they understand the issue so that they could 

contribute effectively? 
• Was enough time allowed for the consultation exercise? 
• What impact has the consultation had on decisions 

making process? 
• How have participants of these decisions been 

informed? 
• Have the results of the consultation been fed back to 

appropriate Members and Officers”. 
 

Members will want to consider if this advice could be improved and 
whether it is being complied with. 

 
4. CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 The Panel has identified a number of matters that might be 

investigated. Some of them are already addressed in the Council’s 
Guidance. In these cases the Panel may want to consider whether the 
Guidance should be amended. Where the Guidance is found to be 
satisfactory Members might have a view on whether it is being 
complied with. Finally, other matters have been outlined that might 
merit inclusion in the Guidance / process. It is now necessary to 
consider these matters in detail with a view to making 
recommendations on them. 
 

4.2 Members may also wish to consider whether any additions need to be 
made to the study’s design in order to reach a conclusion. Recent 
developments suggest there might be greater requirements on the 
Council to consult, for example, as a result of the “duty to involve” and 

13



 4 

new statutory requirements relating to Council Tax. In addition, the 
Council is in the process of reviewing Growing Success and its 
performance management system and both of these will need to 
incorporate consultation. At the same time, there could be 
opportunities for Cambridgeshire local authorities to share information 
obtained through consultation. 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Social Well-Being) Reports and Minutes - 7th 
September and 5th October 2010. 
 
Huntingdonshire District Council Consultation and Engagement Strategy 
 
Huntingdonshire District Council Consultation Guidance 
 
Huntingdonshire District Council Consultation Guidance on Accessibility 
 
Huntingdonshire District Council Communications and Marketing Strategy 
 
Contact Officer: A Roberts (01480) 388015 
 

14



 5 

APPENDIX A 
 
 

AREA OF REVIEW 
DETAILS/COMMENTS 

Title of Study 
(name of Working Group) 

Consultation Process 

Appointing Panel Overview And Scrutiny Panel (Social Well-Being) 

Members Assigned 
(including date Working Group 
appointed)  

Working Group to be identified 

Possible Co-Options to the 
Group 

 

Interests Declared None 

Rapporteur N/A 

Officer Support  
 

A Roberts / H Thackray 

Purpose of Study / Objective 
(specify exactly what the study 
should achieve) 

To review the Council’s consultation and engagement 
polices, procedures and practices and make 
recommendations for improvements to them. 

Rationale 
(key issues and/or reason for 
conducting a study) 

Perceived weaknesses in procedures adopted for recent 
consultations. 
 
Adverse reactions to decisions following consultations. 
 
Perception by some residents that the Council does not 
listen to or consider the views of local residents. 

Terms of Reference Review and update the Council’s policies, procedures and 
procedures relating to consultation and engagement. 
 
Review the implementation of policies and procedures. 
 
Examine the practices of other authorities. 
 
Make recommendations for improvements to the Council’s 
polices, procedures and practices. 

Links to Council 
Policies/Strategies 

Council Aim - To improve our systems and practices 
 
 To enable Councillors to carry out their leadership 

role effectively. 
 
 To be good at communicating with and listening to 
people and organisations. 

 

Methodology / Approach 
(what types of enquiries will be 
used to gather evidence) 

 

External/Specialist Support  

Existing Documentation Consultation and Engagement Strategy. 
 

15



 6 

Consultation and Engagement Guidance. 
 
Communication Strategy. 

Evidence to be Obtained 
(e.g. witnesses, documents, site 
visits, consultation, research, 
etc) 

 

Reference Sites 
 

 
Investigations 
 

Communication (including the language used in the course 
of consultations) 
 
Consultation methodology 
 
Structure of questions 
 
The role of community / pressure groups 
 
Review the effectiveness of consultations 
 
Consultation in rural areas 
 
The use of Neighbourhood forums to promote consultations 
 
Consultation’s ability to support the role of Members and 
help Members engage with their constituents 
 
Public perception of consultation 
 
Publicity for the purpose of consultation 
 
Explanation of decisions following consultation 
 
Data analysis 
 
Assessment of the outcome and effectiveness of 
consultations. 

Witnesses 
 

 

Site Visits (if necessary) 
(where and when) 

 

Meetings of the Working 
Group 

 

Costs 
(resource requirements, 
additional expenditure, time) 

 

Possible Barriers to the Study 
(potential weaknesses) 

 
Projected Timescale 
(Start and end times) 
 

 

 

16



 7 

APPENDIX B 
 
 

Customer Service Strategy: ‘Customer Insight’ 
 
Purpose 
 
Huntingdonshire District Council aims to provide excellent customer service.  
 
Our vision is one where, for each of our services, we have a clear insight into 
the needs of our customers and provide services in a way, which meets those 
needs. Specifically this means each service will; 
 

♦ Carefully consider who its customers are, and what services they 
require; and 

♦ Design service delivery around the needs of those customers. 
 
Contribution to the Council’s Corporate and Strategic Framework 
 
The Council has many roles, but to achieve our aims and objectives in our 
corporate plan, Growing Success, we are committed to consistent and 
sustained customer service.  
 
Using our customer insight, the Council aims to achieve the following 
objectives in Growing Success: 
 

• to provide high quality customer services – by making it as easy as 
possible for customers to access our services and get appropriate 
information; 

 
• to improve access to our services – by introducing new ways of 

contacting the Council including: self service via web site, mobile/home 
delivery of services, increase use of call centre and customer service 
centres; 

 
• to be good at communicating with and listening to people and 

organisations – this will entail regular and effective communication 
with local residents about Council services, seeking their views on new 
proposals, and regularly asking them their opinions and considering 
what they say; 

 
• to be clear about what we can do and aspire to achieve – by 

regularly publishing our plans and services standards and information 
about our performance; 

 
• to be a part of effective partnerships – by continuing to take 

opportunities to work with others where it will meet community needs 
and maximise the resources; 

 
• to strengthen our commitment and capacity to achieve equality, 

diversity and inclusion – by maintaining or establishing statutory 
equality schemes which consider gender, race and disability equality 
issues and the needs of disadvantaged groups at all levels of services, 
policies and practices. 

 

17



 8 

The achievement of these objectives means that the Council must be 
excellent at understanding the needs of the users of our services, those we 
represent and in organising services around those needs.  This requires 
excellent customer service standards and practices, communications, 
marketing, consultation and engagement skills and activities.  
 
In addition to the objectives in Growing Success, a series of strategic policies, 
including the Corporate Equality Policy, Consultation and Engagement 
Strategy and Communications and Marketing Strategy, all contain objectives 
and activities which require effective customer service and/or contribute 
towards the approach adopted within this strategy. 
 
These strategies and policies are mutually supportive and are inherently 
connected in terms of the objectives they are seeking to promote.   
In delivering the vision for excellent customer service the Council also has to 
balance the costs and value of improvements we make.  
 
Background 
 
Where are we now? 
 
Huntingdonshire District Council Customer Service Strategy, approved in 
2003, has been successfully achieved. In the past four years the way that 
customers can contact the Council, obtain services and information has been 
significantly improved -  
 

• A Call Centre has been established which deals with the majority of 
initial calls from customers and provides a more detailed call answering 
service for an increasing range of services. 

• A temporary Customer Service Centre has been established in 
Huntingdon which brought together disparate points of contact for 
customers, including a tourist information centre. In addition to the 
physical change this has facilitated a consistent approach towards 
customer service and improvements in the development of employees. 
A new permanent centre is being built as part of the Council’s new 
headquarters. 

• Satellite Customer Service Centres have been maintained in St Ives 
and St Neots offering payment facilities and a range of other services. 

• Community Information Centres have been successfully established in 
Yaxley and Ramsey working closely with many external partners.  

• Continuous improvements have been made to the Council’s website as 
a means of obtaining information about services. 

• The St Neots Tourist Information Centre has been maintained pending 
its amalgamation with an enhanced customer service centre in the 
town.  

• A Mobile Display Unit is used extensively around the district to promote 
services and as a mobile office. Trials have also been conducted on 
mobile working, mobile information provision and flexible working for 
employees. These trails have provided information about the demand 
and costs of such activities.   

 
In the main, face to face services have developed independently and we need 
to ensure we learn from existing best practice across these locations. Officers 
also act as ‘advocates’ for those customers who need more help than others, 
and this will continue. 
 

18



 9 

Where do we want to be?  
 
Having made these achievements and having regard to increasing customer 
expectation and good practice in this field the time is right to revisit the 
strategy. 
 
The strategy is planned to have a life of approximately three years and 
includes a broad action plan required to achieve its objectives. It is intended to 
reinforce existing good practice and performance already present across the 
Council. The strategy is focussed on the initial contact we have with 
customers and the subsequent delivery of service. 
 
Understanding our customers better 
 
Every potential or actual user of our services is a customer. The Council works 
hard to ensure customers receive excellent service, and while it knows a great 
deal about customers, more can always be done.  
 
The Council wants to better understand the diversity of its communities, and 
deliver services which respond to different needs and aspirations. To do this, it 
needs to get maximum value from the information it gathers, and be able to 
bring different information sources together to build a richer, more 
comprehensive, picture of its customers.  
 
Equality Impact Assessments are being carried out on all our services and 
policies and they will highlight issues that need to be addressed through 
customer service activities. It is important that we have a coordinated 
approach to the use of information from these assessments. 
 
Each service needs to have a clear insight into the customers it serves. The 
following diagram highlights many of the sources of information the Council 
will use to develop this insight.  
 

  
The services the Council provides 
 
The Council delivers many services and for operational reasons and efficiency 
they will continue to be delivered in the most appropriate way. However, as 

19



 10

our ‘customer insight’ develops new ways of meeting customer needs will be 
identified, and opportunities will arise to bring together services to work in a 
way better suited to meeting customer needs. 
 
The way the Council is structured will need to reflect the objectives of this 
strategy. While Heads of Service will remain responsible for the delivery of 
customer service within their own service this will concentrate on more 
complex enquiries, requiring a level of specialist expertise. Such contact may 
lower in volume, but require more time and resources. However, to promote 
the exchange of best practice, service development, improved training and 
consistent levels of high quality customer service it is proposed that Customer 
Service will become within the remit of an existing single Head of Service who 
will be responsible for: 
 

♦ ensuring a customer perspective is at the heart of all services  
♦ overseeing the delivery and monitoring of this strategy 
♦ managing the first point of contact with customers including: 

o The Call Centre 
o Customer Service Centres 
o Community Information Centres 
o Visitor Information Centres 
 

They will deal with high volume, relatively simple services. They will interact 
heavily with customers and will need to be experts in customer service. They 
will also be responsible for: 
 

♦ coordinating campaigns which involve services provided by the 
customer service team  

♦ providing advice and guidance to services  
♦ ensuring managers acknowledge their responsibility for customer 

service in their own service. 
 
Customer Service Skills 
 
Customer service and customer insight are key skills for all employees.  This 
strategy promotes high quality training and development of employees to 
deliver the Council’s objectives. 
 
Meeting the needs of all our customers 
 
The Council has a duty to ensure the services it provides do not exclude any 
group of customers, and this remains a high priority. For example we are 
meeting the needs of the emerging group of customers from the new EU 
member states. The website now has a screen-reader function enabling 
access to blind customers. Other new developments are underway and will be 
completed during the life of the strategy. We will ensure that information and 
communication requirements of disabled people are considered, specifically, 
disabled people have asked to be better informed about facilities and funding. 
 
Making the most of our website 
 
Offering 24/7 access to information and services will be a key part of meeting 
customer needs. By doing this we actively encourage greater access to 
services, at a cheaper cost to the Council, and free resources to deliver 
services to those customers most in need. 

20



 11

 
Where appropriate as part of our everyday business with our customers, we 
will: 
 

♦ make them aware that the information or service they require is 
available online, encouraging them to use the website 

♦ include a link to the Council’s home page, or other relevant pages, in 
e-mails 

♦ include our website address in printed material. 
 
We will continue to look at the design and scope of the website to ensure it 
meets customer needs and consideration will be given to personalising the 
content for particular customers.  We will ensure the website provides high 
quality and useful information, and the number of on-line services will 
increase.  
 
Developing the points of contact with customers 
 
The Council will continue to develop ways for customers to obtain services 
from the Council. 
 

• The Call Centre will remain the primary method of dealing with 
telephone calls and with more services will be offered over time. 

• Direct dial – customers will be able to contact direct service areas. As 
services transfer to the Call Centre, direct dial volumes will decrease 
and these calls will become more focussed on the complex, specialist 
calls, best dealt with by service experts. 

• Face to face - the Customer Service Centre at Huntingdon will be a 
primary point of access, but there will be Customer Service Centres at 
St Ives and St Neots. The Community Information Centres at Yaxley 
and Ramsey will continue to provide services to customers. The range 
of service and information between these centres will be brought 
together. 

• Mobile or flexibly delivered services – services delivered away from the 
Council’s premises; sometimes in a customer’s home will be further 
developed. Work is underway to introduce more flexible ways of 
working. Where there is a clear business case, this has potential to 
provide service at locations more suited to the customer, particularly in 
rural locations. 

• Via the internet – either from their own home, from mobile devices, or 
from public points of access.  

• In writing - this may be within a letter, or a customer may have to apply 
for a service using application forms. 

 
Getting it right first time 
 
Ensuring we answer customer enquiries first time is important. It means the 
customer receives an excellent level of service, and the Council does not 
spend effort dealing with avoidable and repeated customer contact. The 
establishment of the Call Centre and the Customer Service Centre in 
Huntingdon has meant a greater percentage of enquiries are dealt with at the 
first point of contact – but more could be done.  
 
All services can help to improve our performance. Developing a clear 
customer insight requires all staff to understand the needs of customers and 
building services around those needs will reduce costs and lead to greater 

21



 12

satisfaction. The Council should also use data more effectively to inform day 
to day contact with customers. This will increase the likelihood that the service 
offered fits the needs of the customers. 
 
Encouraging customers to provide feedback, and understanding their 
comments allows the Council to make improvements and this is an area the 
Council will develop further. 
 
Managing and responding to customer demand 
 
The Council will also manage demand better by ‘smoothing’ the day-to-day 
peaks in customer demand. This will increase access to service, especially at 
busy times. 
 
For example, collecting and publishing information showing the least busy 
times may encourage some customers to plan their next visit or phone call to 
coincide with these quieter times. In addition it will help services to plan for 
peaks in demand. 
 
Making more of contact with customers 
 
The Council has a Communications and Marketing Strategy and structure in 
place to promote marketing activities and many services already market 
themselves to customers and deliver excellent results. But the Council has 
identified that it can do more. Coordinated and targeted campaigns, based 
upon an increased understanding of customer needs and preferences, will 
ensure customers are more aware of services delivered by the Council. 
 
Increasing the electronic provision of services and information 
 
For some services currently there are limited practical alternatives to a paper 
application form, and some customers prefer to write to the Council.  New 
media is becoming an increasingly preferred method for communication for 
many customers. This is something that must be taken into account and is 
being considered in the communications and marketing strategy, as more 
customers opt to receive electronic communications.  
 
The Council will increase the use of e-mail and the website where possible 
and appropriate. This approach will reduce the time taken for the Council to 
respond to a customer, reduce the use of paper and reduce expenditure. 
 
Bringing together services 
 
While it is important that customers appreciate the distinctions between 
providers of services increasingly they are looking for simple or single points 
of contact. The Council already shares some elements of our customer 
service delivery for the benefit of our customers. Where practical, we will 
engage with partners and other agencies to try to deliver an improved service. 
This will mean customers can access a number of services in one location. 
The Council will need to share information with partners, and this will be 
encouraged. 
 
Action Plan 
 
This strategy is supported by a three-year action plan which will help to ensure 
a consistent approach across the whole of the Council. The Council’s Head of 
Service overseeing customer service will be responsible for the monitoring 

22



 13

and implementation of the plan and will work with other services to make sure 
this happens. 
 
Monitoring and Evaluation 
 
Monitoring and evaluation are critical to ensuring that we achieve the 
objectives.   
 
To ensure we are making progress we will:  
 

• monitor our performance against local (and national, if any) measures 
• report performance on customer service 
• collect and publish evidence of good practice throughout the Council. 

 
This strategy and action plan will be reviewed annually so that we can set 
specific targets for the future. A comprehensive review of the strategy will be 
undertaken every three years.  
 
Risks 
 
The council’s corporate risk register identifies a large number of risks that may 
have negative effects on the council. 
 
An effective customer service strategy is imperative to ensure the risks and 
the possibilities of them becoming a reality are kept to a minimum or 
prevented altogether. 
 
The following key risks have been identified: 
 

• Delivering the strategy may require resources already committed to 
other activities and projects. 

• Customers are targeted in an uncoordinated way, using resources 
inefficiently and lowering customers’ perception of our services. 

• Customer insight may focus effort onto the majority of customers at the 
expense of hard to reach groups. 

• Shared service requires commitment from outside the Council; it may 
be this is not forthcoming. 

 

23



 14 

Action Plan 2008-2011 
 
Outcome Action Measure Target By whom When 
To provide High 
quality customer 
service 
 
Services are 
provided in a way 
that meet customer 
needs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To provide high 
quality customer 
service  

Designates a Head of 
Service to be responsible 
for overseeing the delivery 
of this strategy and for the 
provision of ‘front-office’ 
service. 
 
 
 
Embeds the concept and 
practice of ‘customer 
insight’ into the 
organisation by 
encouraging services to 
implement this strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Training and development 
course for relevant 
employees in customer 

Head of 
Customer Service 
appointed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Achieve 
commitment and 
buy in from all 
departments 
 
 
 
Review the 
complaints & 
feedback system 
to record 
feedback from 
customers, 
particularly 
satisfaction with 
the level of 
service provided.  
Adequate 
courses to meet 
personal 

April 2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All activity 
managers have 
attended a 
customer insight 
workshop. 
 
 
% Improvements 
made based upon 
feedback from 
customers through 
comments and 
complaints. 
 
 
 
 
100% in relation to 
appropriate 
actions. 

Terry Parker 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager  & Central 
Services Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager 
 

April 2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 2009 
 
 

24



 15 

Outcome Action Measure Target By whom When 
 
Services are 
provided in a way 
that meet customers 
needs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

service activities. 
 
 
Establish and publicise 
customer service 
standards. 
 
Production of protocols 
and good practice 
guidance for customer 
service. 
 
Reduce the amount of 
avoidable customer 
contact by ’getting it right 
first time’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Achieve recognition of 
providing customer service 
excellence across all 
customer service locations 
 
 

development plan 
needs. 
 
Publication of 
standards 
 
 
Publications and 
dissemination of 
protocols. 
 
 
NI14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Achievement of 
the prestigious 
Customer service 
excellence award 
 
 

 
 
 
September 2008 
 
 
 
January 2009 
 
 
 
 
Methodology in 
place – Oct 08 
 
Data Gathered – 
Baseline Data 
produced April 09 
 
% Reduction of 
avoidable contact 
TBC. 
 
 
 
Dec 2010 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager 
 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager &HOS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
September 2008 
 
 
 
January 2009 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dec 2010 
 
 
 
 
 

25



 16 

Outcome Action Measure Target By whom When 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To make it as easy 
as possible for 
customers to 
access our services 
and get appropriate 
information. 
 
Services are 
accessible to our 
customers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To make it as easy 
as possible for 
customers to 
access our services 
and get appropriate 
information. 
 
Services are 
accessible to our 

To make better use of 
available data to improve 
our understanding of 
customers needs 
 
 
Maintain or establish 
systems to ensure 
employees know how to 
share information and 
knowledge 
 
 
 
 
Continued development 
and updating of web site 
and web based material 
 
 
 
 
To promote the use of the 
website to improve service 
and ‘free-up’ resources 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Services are built 
around the needs 
of customers 
 
 
 
Sharepoint site 
used to share 
information and 
Knowledge 
 
 
 
 
 
% Of customers 
satisfied that 
web-based 
information meets 
their needs. 
 
 
% Of selected 
transactions (e.g. 
payments) 
completed online 
compared to 
other channels 
(where there is a 
choice) 
 

All activity 
managers 
attended customer 
insight workshop 
 
 
All customer 
service staff 
update and use the  
Sharepoint site to 
share information 
and knowledge 
 
 
 
80% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
50% (this measure 
is part of the 
updated Growing 
Success, so may 
change once 
approved by 
Members) 
 
 

Customer Services 
Manager 
 
 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Web Team 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Web Team & 
Customer Services 
Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
December 2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



 17 

Outcome Action Measure Target By whom When 
customers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To make it as easy 
as possible for 
customers to 
access our services 
and get appropriate 
information. 
 
Services are 
accessible to our 
customers 
 
 

 
To develop the website 
and web based services 
so they are more 
personalised to customers 
needs 
 
 
Continue the development 
of the Call Centre and 
Customer Service Centre 
in Huntingdon. 
 
 
 
 
Develop the face-to-face 
customer service in St 
Neots and St Ives.  
 
 
 
Explores with other public 
services and the voluntary 
sector, opportunities to 
provide services in a way 
that meets customer’s 
needs; especially to 
establish a shared “high 
street” or prominent 
presence in St Neots. 

 
Implement 
personalisation 
on the website 
 
 
 
 
More services 
introduced and 
customers dealt 
with quickly and 
efficiently 
 
 
 
Make 
recommendations  
To improve 
service delivery. 
 
 
Make 
recommendations  
To improve 
service delivery 
 
 
 
 
 

 
By Mar 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Service level 
agreements 
continue to be met 
at the call centre 
and customer 
service centre 
 
 
Report to cabinet 
outlining 
recommendations 
 
 
 
Report to cabinet 
outlining 
recommendations 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
IMD Development Team 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager 
 
 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
By Mar 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2008 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27



 18 

Outcome Action Measure Target By whom When 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To be good at 
communicating 
with and listening 
to people and 
organisations 
 
To work to ensure 
that communities are 
inclusive 
 
 

 
Improves access to 
services by managing, and 
responding to, the demand 
on services better. 
 
 
To improve the delivery of 
mobile services around 
the district. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To ensure all customers, 
including those groups 
which are considered to 
be excluded or do not 
engage with the Council, 
are considered when 
delivering services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Use the results of Equality 

 
% Of customers 
who rate access 
to council 
services as good 
or excellent. 
 
% Of customers 
who rate access 
to council 
services as good 
or excellent. 
 
 
 
 
Use mosaic and 
other customer 
feedback to 
target customer 
groups correctly 
to increase the 
% of  customers 
who rate access 
to council 
services as good 
or excellent. 
 
 
 
Number of 

 
TBC from growing 
success 
 
 
 
 
TBC from growing 
success 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TBC from growing 
success. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100% of 

 
Customer Service Manager 
& HOS 
 
 
 
 
IMD Development Team & 
HOS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Customer Services 
Manager & Heads of 
Service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Customer Service Manager 

 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 

28



 19 

Outcome Action Measure Target By whom When 
Impact Assessments in 
the planning of customer 
service activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

actions arising 
from EIA’s, which 
are used to 
inform customer 
service activities. 

appropriate actions 
 

& Heads of service 
 
 
 

 

 

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
  
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
(SERVICE DELIVERY) 

7TH DECEMBER 2010 
 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP  
VIEWS ON CCTV 

(Report by Head of Environmental & Community Health Services as 
Chairman of the Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide background information to Members of 

value of CCTV: the view of the Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership 
(HCSP).  

 
2            BACKGROUND TO REPORT 
 
2.1 The Chairman of the HCSP received a request from Chairman of O&S (Social 

Well-Being) Panel on 18 November 2010 for the HCSP view of value of CCTV. 
The request was prompted a this is a very current and potentially contentious 
issue at Economic Scrutiny Panel and further information was needed to inform 
a budget decision (due in February 2011), 

 
3. BACKGROUND TO THE VIEWS 
 
3.1 The next meeting of the HCSP is not until 16 December 2010 and the last was 

on 14 October which pre-dated these proposals. This schedule gives insufficient 
time for the partnership to debate the issue and report to the Panel in good 
time. Therefore the Chairman penned a draft response which was circulated to 
the HCSP members for comment on 19 November 2010. 

 
3.2 The Community Safety Partnership was informed on 14 October 2010 of the 

Strategic Assessment of Crime and Disorder in Huntingdonshire (Autumn 2009-
Summer 2010). Within that document they were told that Huntingdonshire is a 
relatively low-crime area and: Crime has gone down in Huntingdonshire by 
8.3%; There have been good reductions across most types of crime; Increasing 
concern relating to some forms of violent crime. The main findings for town 
centre crime were as follows:  

•  Huntingdon town centre has the highest volume of offences 
(although the victim section shows that shop lifting here has come 
down steadily over the last few years)  

•  Other thefts in Huntingdon are relatively high compare to 
elsewhere  

•  There has been no change in the level of violent offences in 
Huntingdon despite violence in Huntingdon being a partnership 
priority  

The main findings for violence near licensed premises were as follows:  
•  The pub / club cluster of most concern continues to be Huntingdon  
•  Part of the St Neots cluster is also of concern  

The main findings for criminal damage were as follows:  
•  The main locations of concern are St Neots and Huntingdon 

 

Agenda Item 6

31



 

3.3 A the time of writing three members of the HCSP have offered individual 
comments on CCTV for consideration in addition to the Chairman’s comment. 

 
4. HCSP VIEW OF VALUE OF CCTV 
 
4.1 Luminus supported the Chairman’s statement and suggested “It is vital… that 

robust evidence is made available to the HCSP as to the effectiveness of CCTV 
in Huntingdonshire so that the Partnership can come to an informed view about 
the provision of the CCTV service as early as possible in 2011.  We will then be 
able to use that evidence to lobby for an appropriate CCTV service in 2012-13 
and beyond”. 

  
4.2 Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service noted “With the work we have been 

involved with and using cameras as a catch/convict and also a deterrent. I am 
confident this will have a detrimental impart on ASB and criminal damage in the 
areas identified as risk areas. I appreciate this is a cost exercise, the cost 
comparison of maintaining the CCTV service compared with increased cost of 
policing and damage may be a good way to justify the retention of some sort of 
CCTV, all be it a reduced one.” 

 
4.3 The Police Authority representative made no comment on behalf of the 

Authority but offered a personal observation: “I should declare an interest here 
because Stilton Parish Council, of which I am chair is, this week, taking 
advantage of a grant from Cambridgeshire Constabulary to extend CCTV 
coverage to include most of our main village centre.  At present the coverage is 
our playing field including skate park, and fortuitously part of High Street.  The 
Parish Council decided we must afford this extension because of the good 
effects of the coverage we presently enjoy.  The skate park is well used 
because parents are confident it is safe and ASB on the field has declined 
dramatically. That includes underage drinking and drug taking.  By extending 
the coverage we hope to have a similar effect on the ASB that occurs regularly 
in the village centre where there is a youth drop- in centre and, more critically, 4 
pubs and an Indian restaurant.  Stilton Parish Council feel that the effect of 
CCTV is cost-saving in that far fewer calls have been made to the police since 
CCTV was installed and the level of complaints to the Parish Council has 
dropped.  Caretaking costs on the field are lower now we don't have to keep a 
look out for drug taking equipment.  Also, in the future we intend to build a 
community hall and further sporting and leisure facilities on the field ,confident 
that there is protection against vandalism of the type we used to suffer. I realise 
that Stilton's experience is insignificant in the grand scheme of things but I do 
feel that more CCTV in the smaller communities rather than less could cut the 
work of [Neighbourhood Policing Teams] NPT's. Can I stress that my remarks 
are on behalf of my community and in no way represent those of the Police 
Authority at this time.” 

 
4.3 The Chairman of HCSP offered the following comments: The Divisional 

Commander has been made aware of the proposals regarding the modifications 
of availability of CCTV in Huntingdonshire. She acknowledged the benefit of 
CCTV in Huntingdonshire to the Police Service; principally in providing visual 
evidence of wrong-doing and encouraging and early admission of guilt (thereby 
saving both the time of the Courts and police-officers’ time in fewer abortive 
Court appearances). She had no immediate concerns about a reduction to the 
basic service in Year 1 (as proposed in the report). It was acknowledged that 
more information may be required to assess the impact of later moth-balling 
(2012-13). It was understood that HDC’s Streetscene Manager, was collating 
any information available on behalf of HDC. A request was made that the Police 
Service consider providing evidence of use/savings but it was unclear whether 

32



 

such information could be extracted from the Police-data available. Details of 
national research that has been undertaken were provided. It was discussed 
that part of the consideration of the future for CCTV could include discussions 
with neighbouring authorities and other agencies; although it was recognised 
that technological compatibility and communication/cabling issue may well act 
as significant constraints. It was suggested that it was likely that the 
Streetscene Manager’s report may touch on these areas. In summary: The 
HCSP is reassured that the draft-budget report includes proposals for 
maintenance of a basic CCTV service for next year (20011-12). In relation to 
full-mothballing at a later date (as proposed in the report) it is suggested that 
more information may be required, but that there will be time during 2011-12 to 
undertake that work.” 

  
5. NATIONAL RESEARCH FINDINGS 
 
5.1 There was a study, undertaken in 2005, on behalf of the Home Office to assess 

the impact of CCTV. They concluded - [Where] “cameras were installed 
exclusively in car parks in order to reduce vehicle crime….. Previous studies 
have shown CCTV to be particularly effective against these types of crime in car 
parks.”  The 2005 study “shows a steady decrease in crime as car parks 
became live, suggesting that in this system the reduction in vehicle crime could 
be attributed to the installation of CCTV.” 

 
5.2 “It has been shown that the CCTV schemes produced no overall effect on all 

relevant crime viewed collectively”. “The [2005] results indicate that the CCTV 
schemes that have been assessed had little overall effect on crime levels. Even 
where changes have been noted, with the exception of those relating to car 
park….could in fact represent either chance variation or confounding factors. 
However, there are some characteristics of CCTV systems which appear to 
influence crime levels. Those systems providing a high level of coverage appear 
to show a greater reduction in crime than those that do not, and the effect is 
increased where the area covered by the cameras is enclosed.” 
 

5.3 “It would be easy to conclude from the information presented in this report that 
CCTV is not effective: the majority of the schemes evaluated did not reduce 
crime and even where there was a reduction this was mostly not due to CCTV; 
nor did CCTV schemes make people feel safer, much less change their 
behaviour. That, however, would be too simplistic a conclusion”….” crime rates 
appeared to the authors to be a poor measure of the effectiveness of CCTV.” 
“…. The importance of the crime-fighting role that CCTV plays in [evidence 
being passed to the police] should not be underestimated. Some weight should 
be attached to the retrospective use of CCTV images for evidential purposes.” 
 

6. CONCLUSION 
 
6.1 People would wish to receive evidence on which to base decisions. However, 

the use of crime rates to measure the effectiveness of CCTV is flawed. A 
request has been made that the Police Service consider providing evidence of 
use/savings but it is doubtful whether such information can be extracted from 
the Police-data available. 

 
6.2 Previous studies have shown CCTV to be particularly effective against crime in 

car parks. There were 743 vehicle crimes (theft from or theft of vehicles) in 
Huntingdonshire between September 2009 and August 2010. This was a 
reduction of 168 crimes from the previous period. The location of these crimes 
seems to be away from current CCTV coverage as there were only 13 crimes 
recorded in all the HDC secure car parks last year (2009/10).  When questioned 

33



 

32.5% (143 from 439) of respondents thought break-ins & damage to vehicles 
was a problem with only 11.4% (50 from 439) reporting it wasn’t a problem at 
all. 

 
6.3 There appears to be no immediate concerns about the impact of a basic service 

during 2011-12; but more information may be required in relation to full-
mothballing at a later date. The investigation may need to include discussions 
with neighbouring authorities and other agencies about any mutually beneficial 
method of maintaining CCTV surveillance in part of Huntingdonshire; there will 
be time during 2011-12 to undertake that work. The next budget round will not 
commence until November 2011; this gives nine months for further enquiries. 

 
 
 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Home Office Research Study 292:  Assessing the impact of CCTV by Martin Gill & 
Angela Spriggs published by Home Office Research, Development and Statistics 
Directorate 
February 2005 
 
 Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership 2010 Strategic Assessment 
County Research Group on behalf of HCSP October 2010 
 
Contact Officer: Dr Susan Lammin 
 � 01480 388280 
 

34



1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to Members performance 
management information on “Growing Success” – the Council’s Corporate 
Plan.

2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2.1 The Council’s Corporate Plan includes short, medium and long term 
objectives to help achieve aims and ambitions for Huntingdonshire’s 
communities and the Council itself.  In addition the Council identified eight of 
these objectives which were considered as priorities for the immediate future. 

3. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

3.1 Progress against all the objectives is reported to Chief Officers Management 
Team quarterly on a service basis.  A progress report from each Division 
includes performance data in the form of achievement against a target for 
each of the objectives that those services contribute towards. This is 
supported by narrative on achievements, other issues or risks and budgeting 
information.

3.2 In addition, a working group appointed by the Overview & Scrutiny Panels 
continues to meet quarterly to monitor progress in the achievement of the 
Plan and to consider development issues. 

3.3 Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Panels have an important role in the 
Council’s Performance Management Framework and the process of regular 
review of performance data has been established.  In adopting the updated 
version of Growing Success, and in particular in prioritising objectives, it was 
intended that Members should concentrate their monitoring on a small 
number of objectives to enable them to adopt a strategic overview while 
building confidence that the Council priorities are being achieved. 

3.4 Members of the Panels will also find broader performance information of help 
to them in undertaking their review and scrutiny functions.  This information 
can be provided on a regular or ad-hoc basis. A review of Growing Success, 
involving officers and members, is currently underway with the emphasis on 
local priorities, informed by national changes to performance arrangements. 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY   
SOCIAL WELL-BEING 
ECONOMIC WELL-BEING 
ENVIRONMENTAL WELL-BEING 

7TH December 2010
7TH December 2010
9TH December 2010

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
(Report by the Head of People, Performance & Partnerships) 

Agenda Item 7

35



3.5 The priority objectives have been allocated between Panels as follows: 

SOCIAL
WELL-BEING

ENVIRONMENTAL
WELL-BEING

ECONOMIC 
WELL-BEING

To enable the provision of 
affordable housing  

To help mitigate and adapt 
to climate change

Effective Partnership 

To achieve a low level of 
homelessness

To promote development 
opportunities in and 
around the market towns 

To be an employer people 
want to work for

To promote active 
lifestyles

 Maximise business and 
income opportunities 
including external funding 
and grants

4. PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

4.1 The following performance data is appended for consideration: 

Annex A - Performance data from services which contribute to the Council 
objectives.  For each measure there is a target, actual performance against 
target, forecast performance for the next period, an indicator showing the 
direction of travel compared with the previous quarter and a comments field.  
The data is colour coded as follows: 

! green – achieving or above target; 
! amber – between target and an “intervention level” (the level at which 

performance is considered to be unacceptable and action is required); 
! red – the intervention level or below; and 
! grey – data not available. 

Annex B - a summary of the achievements, issues and risks relating to the 
objectives, as identified by the Heads of Service. 

5.        DATA QUALITY 

5.1 The appropriate Heads of Service have confirmed the accuracy of the data in 
the attached report and that its compilation is in accordance with the 
appropriate Divisions’ data measure templates.  Acknowledging the 
importance of performance management data, a system of spot checks has 
been introduced to give further assurance on its accuracy. 

6. RECOMMENDATION 

6.1 Members are recommended to; 

Consider the results of performance for priority objectives. 

36



BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Performance Management reports produced from the Council’s CPMF software 
system 

Growing Success: Corporate Plan 

Contact Officer: Howard Thackray, Policy & Research Manager 
!     01480 388035 

37



This page is intentionally left blank 

38



^
åå

Éñ
 ^
 J
 p
çÅ

á~
ä t

Éä
äJ_

Éá
åÖ

 n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó
 o

Éé
çê
í

PM
 p
Éé

íÉ
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
OM

NM

`
ç
ã
ã
ì
å
áí
óL
`
ç
ì
å
Åá
ä ^

áã
W 
e
É~

äí
Ü
ó 
i
áî
áå
Ö

l
Ä
àÉ
Åí
áî
ÉW
 q
ç
 é
êç

ã
ç
íÉ
 ~
Åí
áî
É 
äáÑ
Éë

íó
äÉ
ë

a
áî
áë
áç
å
W 
i
Éá
ëì

êÉ
a
áî
áë
áç
å
~ä
 l

Ä
àÉ
Åí
áî
ÉW
 q
ç
 áå

Åê
É~

ëÉ
 é
~ê
íá
Åá
é
~í
áç
å
 áå

 Ü
É~

äí
Ü
ó 
é
Ü
óë

áÅ
~ä
 ~
Åí
áî
áí
áÉ
ë

h
Éó

 ^
Åí
áî
áíó
Eë
F 
çå

äó
 íç

 Ç
Éä
áî
Éê
 ë
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 ç
Äà
ÉÅ

íáî
ÉW

h
Éó

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ
W

q
~ê
ÖÉ

íW
^
Åí
ì~

äW
c
çê
ÉÅ

~ë
íW

a
çq

GW
`
çã

ã
Éå

íW

j
~á
åí
~á
å 
~å

Ç 
áã

éê
çî

É 
ëí
~å

Ç~
êÇ
 ç
Ñ Ñ
~Å

áäá
íáÉ

ë 
C
 ã

~í
ÅÜ

Ñ~
Åá
äáí
ó 
éê
çî

áë
áç
å 
ï
áíÜ

 ì
ë~

ÖÉ
 Ç
Éã

~å
Ç 
Ep

`
p
 ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
F

k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 ~
Çã

áë
ëá
çå

ëL
é~

êí
áÅ
áé
~å

íë
 áå

 ~
Åí
áî
áíá
Éë

 é
êç
îá
ÇÉ

Ç 
çê
 é
êç
ã
çí
ÉÇ

 Ä
ó

íÜ
É 
`
çì

åÅ
áä 
EÅ
ìã

ìä
~í
áî
É 
èì

~ê
íÉ
êäó

 í~
êÖ
Éí
F

VN
TI
OR

P
UN

VI
TP

M
Eo

F
>

`
çã

é~
ê~
íáî

É 
Öê
çï

íÜ
 áå

~Ç
ã
áë
ëá
çå

ë 
Ñê
çã

 p
Éé

í M
V 
íç

p
Éé

í N
M 
áë
 å
áä 
q
Üá
ë 
êÉ
ÑäÉ

Åí
ë 
åç

åÉ
ï
 áå

îÉ
ëí
ã
Éå

í á
å 
íÜ
~í
 é
Éê
áç
ÇK

b
ñé

ÉÅ
íÉ
Ç 
Öê
çï

íÜ
 ~
í p

í f
îÉ

ë
l
ìí
Çç

çê
 E
Äá
Ç 
ëí
áää
 ç
ìí
ëí
~å

Çá
åÖ

F
~å

Ç 
p
í k

Éç
íë
 E
ä~
íÉ
 ç
éÉ

åá
åÖ

F
Ü~

ë 
åç

í ó
Éí
 ã

~í
Éê
á~
äáë
ÉÇ

K
b
äë
Éï

ÜÉ
êÉ
I ê
ÉÇ

ìÅ
íáç

å 
áå

çé
Éå

áå
Ö 
Üç

ìê
ë 
~å

Ç 
Å~

åÅ
Éä
ä~
íáç

å
çÑ
 Å
ä~
ëë

Éë
 Ü
~ë

 Ü
~Ç

 ~
 å
ÉÖ

~í
áî
É

ÉÑ
ÑÉ
Åí
 ç
å 
íç
í~
ä ~

Çã
áë
ëá
çå

ëK
q
~ê
ÖÉ

í Ñ
çê
 Ñá
å~

ä í
ï
ç 
èì

~ê
íÉ
êë

Ü~
ë 
ÄÉ

Éå
 ~
ã
Éå

ÇÉ
Ç

~Å
Åç

êÇ
áå
Öä
ó

n
o
q

m
êç
ã
çí
áç
å 
~å

Ç 
ã
~ê
âÉ

íáå
Ö 
çÑ
 ~
î~

áä~
Ää
É 
~Å

íáî
áíá
Éë

k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 ~
Åí
áî
É 
Å~

êÇ
 Ü
çä
ÇÉ

êë
PM

IT
RM

PR
IN
MS

Ed
F

?
`
çå

íáå
ìÉ

Ç 
ëì

ÅÅ
Éë

ë 
çÑ
 l

åÉ
iÉ

áë
ìê
É 
`
~ê
Ç

n
o
q

a
áî
áë
áç
å
W 
i
áÑ
Éë

íó
äÉ
ë

a
áî
áë
áç
å
~ä
 l

Ä
àÉ
Åí
áî
ÉW
 q
ç
 é
êç

ã
ç
íÉ
 Ü
É~

äí
Ü
ó 
äáÑ
Éë

íó
äÉ
 Å
Ü
ç
áÅ
Éë

h
Éó

 ^
Åí
áî
áíó
Eë
F 
çå

äó
 íç

 Ç
Éä
áî
Éê
 ë
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 ç
Äà
ÉÅ

íáî
ÉW

h
Éó

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ
W

q
~ê
ÖÉ

íW
^
Åí
ì~

äW
c
çê
ÉÅ

~ë
íW

a
çq

GW
`
çã

ã
Éå

íW
m
êç
îá
ÇÉ

 ~
 ê
~å

ÖÉ
 ç
Ñ ~

ÅÅ
Éë

ëá
Ää
É 
äÉ
áë
ìê
É 
çé

éç
êí
ìå

áíá
Éë

ëì
ÅÜ

 ~
ëW
 ~
 e

çä
áÇ
~ó

 ^
Åí
áî
áíó
 m
êç
Öê
~ã

ã
É 
Ñç
ê 
YN

T 
óê
ë

Ep
`
p
 ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
F

q
çí
~ä
 íÜ

êç
ìÖ

Üé
ìí
 ç
Ñ ë

ÅÜ
çç

äI 
çì

íê
É~

ÅÜ
 ~
åÇ

 Ü
çä
áÇ
~ó

 ~
Åí
áî
áíó
 m
êç
Öê
~ã

ã
Éë

EÅ
ìã

ìä
~í
áî
É 
èì

~ê
íÉ
êäó

 í~
êÖ
Éí
F

OI
OR

M
PI
QR

T
Ed

F
?

n
o
q

m
êç
îá
ÇÉ

 í~
êÖ
Éí
ÉÇ

 ë
ÅÜ

Éã
Éë

 íç
 É
å~

Ää
É 
îì

äå
Éê
~Ä

äÉ
éÉ

çé
äÉ
 íç

 é
~ê
íáÅ

áé
~í
É 
áå
 é
Üó

ëá
Å~

ä ä
Éá
ëì

êÉ
 ~
Åí
áî
áíá
Éë

 E
áå
Å

b
ñÉ

êÅ
áë
É 
o
ÉÑ
Éê
ê~
äI 
`
çã

ã
ìå

áíó
 p
éç

êí
ë 
~å

Ç
o
ÉÅ

êÉ
~í
áç
å 
m
êç
àÉ
Åí
I `

çã
ã
ìå

áíó
 p
éç

êí
ë 
k
Éí
ï
çê
â 
~å

Ç
^
Åí
áî
É 
iá
ÑÉ
 ë
ÅÜ

Éã
ÉF
 E
p
`
p
 ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
 O
KN
KR
F

q
Üê
çì

ÖÜ
éì

í ç
å 
áÇ
Éå

íáÑ
áÉ
Ç 
ëÅ
ÜÉ

ã
Éë

 E
Åì

ã
ìä
~í
áî
É 
èì

~ê
íÉ
êäó

 í~
êÖ
Éí
F

TI
RM

M
TI
PQ

N
E^

F
>

^
ííÉ

åÇ
~å

ÅÉ
ë 
~í
 ~
Åí
áî
É 
äáÑ
É

Åä
~ë

ëÉ
ë 
~å

Ç 
Éñ

Éê
Åá
ëÉ

 ê
ÉÑ
Éê
ê~
ä

~Ñ
ÑÉ
Åí
ÉÇ

 Ä
ó 
Äì

áäÇ
áå
Ö 
ï
çê
âë

 ~
åÇ

ëì
Äë

Éè
ìÉ

åí
 Ç
áë
êì
éí
áç
å 
~í
 l

åÉ
iÉ

áë
ìê
É 
p
í k

Éç
íë

n
o
q

G 
a
áêÉ

Åí
áç
å 
çÑ
 q
ê~
îÉ

ä J
 ë
Üç

ï
ë 
ÅÜ

~å
ÖÉ

 áå
 é
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 ë
áå
ÅÉ

 ä~
ëí
 è
ì~

êí
Éê
I ï

ÜÉ
êÉ
 ~
éé

äáÅ
~Ä

äÉ
N

39



^
åå

Éñ
 ^
 J
 p
çÅ

á~
ä t

Éä
äJ_

Éá
åÖ

 n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó
 o

Éé
çê
í

PM
 p
Éé

íÉ
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
OM

NM

m
êç
îá
ÇÉ

 ì
åÇ

Éê
Jê
Éé

êÉ
ëÉ

åí
ÉÇ

 Ö
êç
ìé

ë 
ï
áíÜ

 íÜ
É

çé
éç

êí
ìå

áíó
 íç

 é
~ê
íáÅ

áé
~í
É 
áå
 ë
éç

êí
 ~
åÇ

 ~
Åí
áî
É

êÉ
Åê
É~

íáç
å 
Ep

`
p
 ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
F

q
çí
~ä
 íÜ

êç
ìÖ

Üé
ìí
 ç
Ñ ~

Åí
áî
áíó
 é
êç
Öê
~ã

ã
É 
Ñç
ê 
Çá
ë~

Ää
ÉÇ

 é
~ê
íáÅ

áé
~å

íë
 ~
åÇ

ìå
ÇÉ

êJ
êÉ
éê
Éë

Éå
íÉ
Ç 
Öê
çì

éë
 E
Åì

ã
ìä
~í
áî
É 
èì

~ê
íÉ
êäó

 í~
êÖ
Éí
F

VM
M

TT
T 
E^

F
>

^
ííÉ

åÇ
~å

ÅÉ
ë 
~í
 ~
Åí
áî
áíá
Éë

 ~
í

l
åÉ

 i
Éá
ëì

êÉ
 p
í k

Éç
íë
 ~
ÑÑÉ

Åí
ÉÇ

Äó
 Ä
ìá
äÇ
áå
Ö 
ï
çê
âë

 ~
åÇ

ëì
Äë

Éè
ìÉ

åí
 Ç
áë
êì
éí
áç
åK

e
çä
áÇ
~ó

 ~
Åí
áî
áíó
 ~
ííÉ

åÇ
~å

ÅÉ
ë

~Ñ
ÑÉ
Åí
ÉÇ

 Ä
ó 
éê
áÅ
áå
Ö 
éç

äáÅ
ó

~Ç
çé

íÉ
Ç 
íç
 ~
ÅÜ

áÉ
îÉ

 É
ÑÑá
Åá
Éå

Åá
Éë

n
o
q

p
ìé

éç
êí
 î
ìä
åÉ

ê~
Ää
É 
éÉ

çé
äÉ
 íç

 Ä
É 
ã
çê
É 
~Å

íáî
ÉI

`
~ê
Çá
~Å

 o
ÉÜ

~Ä
áäá
í~
íáç

å 
éê
çÖ

ê~
ã
ã
É 
~å

Ç 
e
É~

äíÜ
 t

~ä
âë

q
çí
~ä
 íÜ

êç
ìÖ

Üé
ìí
 ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

 `
~ê
Çá
~Å

 o
ÉÜ

~Ä
áäá
í~
íáç

å 
éê
çÖ

ê~
ã
ã
É 
~å

Ç 
e
É~

äíÜ
t
~ä
âë

 áå
 e

ìå
íáå

ÖÇ
çå

ëÜ
áêÉ

 E
Åì

ã
ìä
~í
áî
É 
èì

~ê
íÉ
êäó

 í~
êÖ
Éí
F

QI
TR

M
QI
VO

N
Ed

F
≅

n
o
q

`
ç
ã
ã
ì
å
áí
óL
`
ç
ì
å
Åá
ä ^

áã
W 
e
ç
ì
ëá
å
Ö
 í
Ü
~í
 ã

ÉÉ
íë
 áå

Ç
áî
áÇ
ì
~ä
ë 
å
ÉÉ

Ç
ë

l
Ä
àÉ
Åí
áî
ÉW
 q
ç
 ~
ÅÜ

áÉ
îÉ

 ~
 äç

ï
 äÉ

îÉ
ä ç

Ñ 
Ü
ç
ã
Éä
Éë

ëå
Éë

ë
a
áî
áë
áç
å
W 
e
ç
ì
ëá
å
Ö

a
áî
áë
áç
å
~ä
 l

Ä
àÉ
Åí
áî
ÉW
 q
ç
 ~
ÅÜ

áÉ
îÉ

 ~
 äç

ï
 äÉ

îÉ
ä ç

Ñ 
Ü
ç
ã
Éä
Éë

ëå
Éë

ë
h
Éó

 ^
Åí
áî
áíó
Eë
F 
çå

äó
 íç

 Ç
Éä
áî
Éê
 ë
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 ç
Äà
ÉÅ

íáî
ÉW

h
Éó

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ
W

q
~ê
ÖÉ

íW
^
Åí
ì~

äW
c
çê
ÉÅ

~ë
íW

a
çq

GW
`
çã

ã
Éå

íW

Ek
f N

RS
F 
k
çK
 ç
Ñ Ü

çì
ëÉ

Üç
äÇ
ë 
äáî
áå
Ö 
áå
 íÉ

ã
éç

ê~
êó
 ~
ÅÅ

çã
ã
çÇ

~í
áç
å

SM
VM

 E
o
F

≅
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ

Üç
ã
Éä
Éë

ëå
Éë

ë 
éê
Éë

Éå
í~
íáç

åë
n
o
q

_
ó 
ÜÉ

äé
áå
Ö 
íç
 é
êÉ
îÉ

åí
 é
Éç

éä
É 
Ñê
çã

 Ä
ÉÅ

çã
áå
Ö

Üç
ã
Éä
Éë

ë 
Äó

 Ü
çì

ëá
åÖ

 Ü
çã

Éä
Éë

ë 
éÉ

çé
äÉ
I ï

ÜÉ
êÉ

~é
éê
çé

êá~
íÉ

q
ÜÉ

 å
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 Ü
çì

ëÉ
Üç

äÇ
ë 
éê
Éî

Éå
íÉ
Ç 
Ñê
çã

 Ä
ÉÅ

çã
áå
Ö 
Üç

ã
Éä
Éë

ë 
áå
 íÜ

É
óÉ

~ê
 E
Åì

ã
ìä
~í
áî
É 
èì

~ê
íÉ
êäó

 ã
É~

ëì
êÉ
F

NP
M

NV
M 
Ed

F
?

l
å 
Åç

ìê
ëÉ

 íç
 ã

ÉÉ
í í
~ê
ÖÉ

í ç
Ñ

OS
M 
Äó

 ^
éê
áä 
OM

NN
K i

~ê
ÖÉ

áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 E
PN

B
F 
áå
 íÜ

É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê
çÑ
 ~
éé

äáÅ
~å

íë
 áå

íÉ
êî
áÉ
ï
ÉÇ

 Ä
ó

e
çì

ëá
åÖ

 l
éí
áç
åë

 ë
í~
ÑÑK

n
o
q

`
ç
ã
ã
ì
å
áí
óL
`
ç
ì
å
Åá
ä ^

áã
W 
a
Éî

Éä
ç
é
áå
Ö
 Å
ç
ã
ã
ì
å
áí
áÉ
ë 
ëì

ëí
~á
å
~Ä

äó

l
Ä
àÉ
Åí
áî
ÉW
 q
ç
 É
å
~Ä

äÉ
 í
Ü
É 
é
êç

îá
ëá
ç
å
 ç
Ñ 
~Ñ
Ñç
êÇ

~Ä
äÉ
 Ü
ç
ì
ëá
å
Ö

a
áî
áë
áç
å
W 
e
ç
ì
ëá
å
Ö

a
áî
áë
áç
å
~ä
 l

Ä
àÉ
Åí
áî
ÉW
 q
ç
 É
å
~Ä

äÉ
 í
Ü
É 
é
êç

îá
ëá
ç
å
 ç
Ñ 
~Ñ
Ñç
êÇ

~Ä
äÉ
 Ü
ç
ì
ëá
å
Ö

h
Éó

 ^
Åí
áî
áíó
Eë
F 
çå

äó
 íç

 Ç
Éä
áî
Éê
 ë
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 ç
Äà
ÉÅ

íáî
ÉW

h
Éó

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ
W

q
~ê
ÖÉ

íW
^
Åí
ì~

äW
c
çê
ÉÅ

~ë
íW

a
çq

GW
`
çã

ã
Éå

íW
_
ó 
ã
~ñ

áã
áë
áå
Ö 
íÜ
É 
ä~
åÇ

 ~
î~

áä~
Ää
É 
Ñç
ê 
åÉ

ï
 ~
ÑÑç

êÇ
~Ä

äÉ
Üç

ìë
áå
ÖK
 _
ó 
ï
çê
âá
åÖ

 áå
 é
~ê
íå
Éê
ëÜ

áé
 ï
áíÜ

 e
çì

ëá
åÖ

^
ëë
çÅ

á~
íáç

åë
 íç

 Ä
áÇ
 Ñç

ê 
Éñ

íÉ
êå
~ä
 Ñì

åÇ
áå
ÖK
 _
ó 
ã
~â

áå
Ö 
~

Ñáå
~å

Åá
~ä
 Å
çå

íê
áÄ
ìí
áç
å 
íç
 é
~ó

 Ñç
ê 
~Ñ
Ñç
êÇ
~Ä

äÉ
 Ü
çã

Éë
 íç

ÄÉ
 Ä
ìá
äí

Ek
f N

RR
F 
k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 å
Éï

 ~
ÑÑç

êÇ
~Ä

äÉ
 Ü
çã

Éë
 Ä
ìá
äí 
Äó

 j
~ê
ÅÜ

 O
MN

N
EÅ
ìã

ìä
~í
áî
É 
èì

~ê
íÉ
êäó

 í~
êÖ
Éí
F 
Eäç

Å~
ä í
~ê
ÖÉ

íF
NM

S
NO

O 
Ed

F
≅

b
ëí
áã

~í
ÉÇ

 Å
çã

éä
Éí
áç
åë

 ~
êÉ

Åì
êê
Éå

íäó
 O
UM

n
o
q

G 
a
áêÉ

Åí
áç
å 
çÑ
 q
ê~
îÉ

ä J
 ë
Üç

ï
ë 
ÅÜ

~å
ÖÉ

 áå
 é
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 ë
áå
ÅÉ

 ä~
ëí
 è
ì~

êí
Éê
I ï

ÜÉ
êÉ
 ~
éé

äáÅ
~Ä

äÉ
O

40



^
åå

Éñ
 ^
 J
 p
çÅ

á~
ä t

Éä
äJ_

Éá
åÖ

 n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó
 o

Éé
çê
í

PM
 p
Éé

íÉ
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
OM

NM

a
áî
áë
áç
å
W 
m
ä~
å
å
áå
Ö

a
áî
áë
áç
å
~ä
 l

Ä
àÉ
Åí
áî
ÉW
 j

~ñ
áã

áë
É 
é
êç

îá
ëá
ç
å
 ç
Ñ 
~Ñ
Ñç
êÇ

~Ä
äÉ
 Ü
ç
ì
ëá
å
Ö
 ç
å
 ê
Éä
Éî

~å
í 
Ç
Éî

Éä
ç
é
ã
Éå

í 
ëá
íÉ
ë

h
Éó

 ^
Åí
áî
áíó
Eë
F 
çå

äó
 íç

 Ç
Éä
áî
Éê
 ë
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 ç
Äà
ÉÅ

íáî
ÉW

h
Éó

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ
W

q
~ê
ÖÉ

íW
^
Åí
ì~

äW
c
çê
ÉÅ

~ë
íW

a
çq

GW
`
çã

ã
Éå

íW
a
Éî

Éä
çé

 `
çê
É 
p
íê
~í
ÉÖ

ó 
~å

Ç 
a
Éî

Éä
çé

ã
Éå

í `
çå

íê
çä

B
 ç
Ñ ~

ÑÑç
êÇ
~Ä

äÉ
 Ü
çì

ëá
åÖ

 E
Åç

ã
ã
áíã

Éå
íë
F 
çå

 è
ì~

äáÑ
óá
åÖ

 ë
áíÉ

ë 
EÅ
ìã

ìä
~í
áî
ÉF

QM
κ
Λ⊥

^
åå

ì~
ä ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
I Ç

~í
~ 
íç
 Ñç

ääç
ï

v
o
i

m
çä
áÅ
áÉ
ë 
a
m
a
 E
íç
 ë
Éí
 é
çä
áÅ
ó 
Ñê
~ã

Éï
çê
âF
L^
Çç

éí
m
ä~
åå

áå
Ö 
l
Ää
áÖ
~í
áç
åë

 p
m
a
 E
íç
 ë
Éí
 ë
éÉ

Åá
ÑáÅ

 í~
êÖ
Éí
ë 
~å

Ç
B
 ç
Ñ Ü

çì
ëá
åÖ

 Å
çã

éä
Éí
áç
åë

 ç
å 
èì

~ä
áÑó
áå
Ö 
ëá
íÉ
ë 
íÜ
~í
 ~
êÉ
 ~
ÑÑç

êÇ
~Ä

äÉ
 áå

 ã
~ê
âÉ

í
íç
ï
åë

 ~
åÇ

 â
Éó

 ë
Éí
íäÉ

ã
Éå

íë
QM

κ
Λ⊥

^
åå

ì~
ä ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
I Ç

~í
~ 
íç
 Ñç

ääç
ï

v
o
i

íÜ
êÉ
ëÜ

çä
Çë

FL
k
ÉÖ

çí
á~
íÉ
 p
NM

S 
^
Öê
ÉÉ

ã
Éå

íë
 E
íç
 Ç
Éä
áî
Éê

êÉ
èì

áêÉ
Ç 
~ã

çì
åí
ë 
çÑ
 ~
ÑÑç

êÇ
~Ä

äÉ
 Ü
çì

ëá
åÖ

F
B
 ç
Ñ Ü

çì
ëá
åÖ

 Å
çã

éä
Éí
áç
åë

 ç
å 
èì

~ä
áÑó
áå
Ö 
ëá
íÉ
ë 
íÜ
~í
 ~
êÉ
 ~
ÑÑç

êÇ
~Ä

äÉ
 áå

 ë
ã
~ä
äÉ
ê

ëÉ
ííä
Éã

Éå
íë

QM
κ
Λ⊥

^
åå

ì~
ä ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
I Ç

~í
~ 
íç
 Ñç

ääç
ï

v
o
i

G 
a
áêÉ

Åí
áç
å 
çÑ
 q
ê~
îÉ

ä J
 ë
Üç

ï
ë 
ÅÜ

~å
ÖÉ

 áå
 é
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 ë
áå
ÅÉ

 ä~
ëí
 è
ì~

êí
Éê
I ï

ÜÉ
êÉ
 ~
éé

äáÅ
~Ä

äÉ
P

41



This page is intentionally left blank 

42



S
O

C
IA

L 
W

E
LL

-B
E

IN
G

 (
u

p
 t

o
 3

0
th

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

) 
A

N
N

E
X

 B
 

1

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
: 

L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tr
es

:

N
ot

ab
le

 a
dm

is
si

on
 in

cr
ea

se
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

t H
un

tin
gd

on
 (

9.
7%

) 
an

d 
a 

si
m

ila
r 

st
or

y 
em

er
gi

ng
 a

t S
t N

eo
ts

 
al

th
ou

gh
 t

he
 c

en
tr

e 
ha

s 
on

ly
 b

ee
n 

op
en

 fo
r 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
3 

w
ee

ks
 a

nd
 q

ua
rt

er
 t

hr
ee

 w
ill

 b
et

te
r 

re
fle

ct
 t

he
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. 
Im

pr
es

si
on

s 
ad

m
is

si
on

s 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
gr

ow
 (

H
un

tin
gd

on
 u

p 
7.

6%
, 

S
t 

N
eo

ts
 u

p 
6%

) 
an

d 
no

w
 

co
m

pr
is

e 
ov

er
 1

7%
 o

f t
ot

al
 a

dm
is

si
on

s 
(s

w
im

m
in

g 
re

m
ai

ns
 s

ta
tic

 a
t 1

6%
).

 

T
he

 O
ne

 L
ei

su
re

 c
ar

d 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

re
m

ai
ns

 a
 s

uc
ce

ss
 w

ith
 o

ve
r 

96
,0

00
 c

ar
d 

ho
ld

er
s 

no
w

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

of
 w

hi
ch

 
35

,1
00

 (
36

%
) 

ar
e 

“li
ve

” 
us

er
s.

 3
3,

00
0 

un
de

r 
18

’s
 n

ow
 h

ol
d 

a 
ca

rd
 w

ith
 e

xa
ct

ly
 a

 q
ua

rt
er

 b
ei

ng
 in

 th
e 

13
-1

7 
ag

e 
ca

te
go

ry
. A

lm
os

t 7
,0

00
 o

ve
r 

60
’s

 a
ls

o 
ho

ld
 a

 O
ne

 C
ar

d.
 

T
he

 n
ew

 F
un

 Z
on

es
 h

av
e 

dr
aw

n 
in

 n
ea

rly
 2

0,
00

0 
ch

ild
re

n 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

at
 S

t 
N

eo
ts

 a
nd

 H
un

tin
gd

on
 a

nd
 t

he
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 C

af
é 

Z
es

t 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

be
ne

fit
ed

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly

 (
H

un
tin

gd
on

 i
nc

om
e 

up
 8

%
, 

S
t 

N
eo

ts
 u

p 
25

0%
 t

o 
da

te
).

 
S

ch
oo

ls
 a

dm
is

si
on

s 
ar

e 
no

t r
ec

or
de

d 
ab

ov
e 

bu
t t

ot
al

le
d 

14
8,

00
0.

 

Is
su

es
 o

r 
ac

tio
ns

 
fo

r 
ne

xt
 q

ua
rt

er
: 

L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tr
es

:

65
%

 o
f 

al
l a

va
ila

bl
e 

co
ur

ts
 w

er
e 

us
ed

 (
69

%
 la

st
 y

ea
r)

, 
bu

t 
po

ol
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 h
as

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 t

o 
20

.8
 p

eo
pl

e 
pe

r 
ho

ur
 (

fr
om

 2
3.

1)
 a

lth
ou

gh
 s

w
im

m
in

g 
le

ss
on

s 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 r
eg

is
te

r 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

ar
ou

nd
 8

5%
.

R
am

se
y 

an
d 

S
aw

tr
y 

sl
ig

ht
 d

ec
re

as
e 

on
 ta

rg
et

. 

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
H

ea
lt

h
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

A
tte

nd
an

ce
s 

at
 

ac
tiv

e 
lif

e 
cl

as
se

s,
 

ex
er

ci
se

 
re

fe
rr

al
 

an
d 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

 
an

d 
un

de
r-

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

gr
ou

ps
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
bu

ild
in

g 
w

or
ks

 a
nd

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t d

is
ru

pt
io

n 
at

 O
ne

 L
ei

su
re

 S
t N

eo
ts

. 

H
ol

id
ay

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
s 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

pr
ic

in
g 

po
lic

y 
ad

op
te

d 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 e
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

. 

T
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

ac
tiv

e 
lif

es
ty

le
s

R
is

ks
: 

L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tr
es

:

G
ro

w
th

 in
 S

t I
ve

s 
O

ut
do

or
 C

en
tr

e 
ad

m
is

si
on

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

35
,0

00
pa

 (
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 ta
rg

et
) 

on
 b

ac
k 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
sy

nt
he

tic
 p

itc
h 

bu
t b

id
 n

ot
 y

et
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
no

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
n 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r 
(b

id
 d

ec
is

io
n 

N
ov

 2
01

0)
. 

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
H

ea
lt

h
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

H
ea

lth
y 

Li
fe

st
yl

es
 L

ot
te

ry
 b

id
 n

ot
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l: 
an

 a
tte

m
pt

 to
 r

ep
la

ce
 lo

st
 L

P
S

A
 (

Lo
ca

l P
ub

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t)
 

re
w

ar
d 

fu
nd

in
g.

 P
ot

en
tia

l r
ev

en
ue

 s
ho

rt
fa

ll 
in

 2
01

1-
12

 p
ut

s 
so

m
e 

po
pu

la
r 

co
ur

se
s/

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 a
t r

is
k.

 

T
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

a 
lo

w
 le

ve
l o

f 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
: 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 S
er

vi
ce

s:

87
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
pr

ev
en

te
d 

fr
om

 b
ec

om
in

g 
ho

m
el

es
s 

in
 Q

2 
of

 t
he

 y
ea

r,
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 1

07
 in

 Q
2 

la
st

 y
ea

r.
 A

 t
ot

al
 

of
 1

90
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l p
re

ve
nt

io
ns

 in
 t

he
 f

irs
t 

ha
lf 

of
 2

01
0/

11
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 1

92
 in

 t
he

 f
irs

t 
ha

lf 
of

 la
st

 y
ea

r.
 M

et
 w

ith
 

ho
us

in
g 

as
so

ci
at

io
ns

 to
 c

on
si

de
r 

un
de

r-
oc

cu
pa

tio
n 

of
 s

oc
ia

l r
en

te
d 

ho
m

es
 a

nd
 p

os
si

bl
e 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
. 

H
ou

si
ng

 O
pt

io
ns

 I
nt

er
vi

ew
s 

ha
ve

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 3
1%

, 
87

7 
in

 t
he

 f
irs

t 
6 

m
on

th
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

ye
ar

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 6
71

 in
 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r.
 T

he
se

 fi
gu

re
s 

do
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
da

ily
 lo

w
er

 le
ve

l t
el

ep
ho

ne
 a

dv
ic

e.
 

43



S
O

C
IA

L 
W

E
LL

-B
E

IN
G

 (
u

p
 t

o
 3

0
th

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

) 
A

N
N

E
X

 B
 

2

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

Is
su

es
 o

r 
ac

tio
ns

 
fo

r 
ne

xt
 q

ua
rt

er
: 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 S
er

vi
ce

s:

90
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
in

 t
em

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
at

 t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 8
0 

at
 t

he
 s

ta
rt

. 
62

 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 w
er

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 a

s 
ho

m
el

es
s 

in
 Q

2 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 3
9 

in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r.

 A
 to

ta
l o

f 
95

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 a
s 

ho
m

el
es

s 
in

 th
e 

fir
st

 h
al

f o
f 2

01
0/

11
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 6

4 
in

 th
e 

fir
st

 h
al

f o
f l

as
t y

ea
r.

 

N
ex

t q
ua

rt
er

’s
 a

ct
io

ns
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

re
vi

se
d 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

w
or

k 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 B

&
B

 (
an

 o
ng

oi
ng

 c
ha

lle
ng

e)
. 

R
is

ks
: 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 S
er

vi
ce

s:

A
ll 

no
rm

al
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

ho
m

el
es

s 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 f

ul
l. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ou
rc

in
g 

ef
fo

rt
s 

m
ay

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n.
 A

ct
ua

l a
cc

ep
te

d 
ho

m
el

es
s 

ca
se

s 
m

ay
 in

cr
ea

se
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

nd
 l

at
er

 p
er

m
an

en
t 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n.

 T
he

 l
ac

k 
of

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

w
ill

 
re

su
lt 

in
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

us
e 

of
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

du
e 

to
 b

ed
 b

lo
ck

in
g.

 

R
ed

uc
ed

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

re
nt

ed
 s

ec
to

r 
if 

ho
us

e 
pr

ic
es

 a
nd

 s
al

es
 in

cr
ea

se
, w

ith
 m

or
e 

ow
ne

rs
 lo

ok
in

g 
to

 s
el

l r
at

he
r 

th
an

 r
en

t 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

ou
t. 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
by

 h
el

pi
ng

 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 in
to

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 te

na
nc

ie
s.

 

A
ny

 w
ith

dr
aw

al
 o

f H
D

C
 r

en
t d

ep
os

it 
lo

an
s 

an
d 

bo
nd

s 
(a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 b
ud

ge
t c

ut
 b

ac
ks

) 
w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 a
ct

ua
l h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

an
d 

th
os

e 
ne

ed
in

g 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

 

P
ot

en
tia

l 
re

du
ct

io
n 

or
 l

os
s 

of
 S

up
po

rt
in

g 
P

eo
pl

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

ho
st

el
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
 (

du
e 

to
 th

ei
r 

bu
dg

et
 p

re
ss

ur
es

).
 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
: 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 S
er

vi
ce

s:

37
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 in
 q

ua
rt

er
. 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 £

3.
58

m
 g

ra
nt

 f
ro

m
 H

C
A

 f
or

 t
w

o 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
sc

he
m

es
 in

 S
t I

ve
s.

 

Is
su

es
 o

r 
ac

tio
ns

 
fo

r 
ne

xt
 q

ua
rt

er
: 

T
o 

en
ab

le
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 

R
is

ks
: 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 S
er

vi
ce

s:

Le
ss

 g
ra

nt
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
fr

om
 th

e 
H

om
es

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 A
ge

nc
y 

an
d/

or
 H

D
C

 fo
r 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
le

ad
 to

 m
or

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 w
ith

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
 w

ai
tin

g 
lo

ng
er

 o
n 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

re
gi

st
er

 a
nd

/o
r 

th
e 

be
d 

bl
oc

ki
ng

 o
f t

em
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

by
 h

om
el

es
s 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 w

hi
ls

t w
ai

tin
g 

fo
r 

pe
rm

an
en

t h
ou

si
ng

. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
er

vi
ce

s:

A
s 

st
at

ed
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
th

e 
m

os
t 

ob
vi

ou
s 

ris
k 

is
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
a 

lo
ng

er
 t

ha
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 d
ow

nt
ur

n 
in

 t
he

 
ho

us
in

g/
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
m

ar
ke

t. 
T

o 
da

te
 H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 h
as

 r
em

ai
ne

d 
‘c

om
pa

ra
tiv

el
y 

bu
oy

an
t’ 

bu
t 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 a
ny

 f
ur

th
er

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ac

tiv
ity

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
up

on
 le

ve
ls

 o
f 

pl
an

ni
ng

 f
ee

 in
co

m
e,

 h
ou

si
ng

 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
th

e 
sc

al
e,

 c
on

te
nt

 a
nd

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l v
ia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 S
10

6 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
. 

44



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING) 

7TH DECEMBER 2010 
 
CONSULTATION: EAST OF ENGLAND AMBULANCE SERVICE NHS TRUST 

(Report by the Head of Democratic & Central Services) 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Council has been consulted by the East of England Ambulance Service 

NHS Trust on its plans to become an NHS Foundation Trust. The Panel’s 
remit includes health matters. The Ambulance Service’s plans are submitted 
to the Panel for consideration and response. 

 
2. AN NHS FOUNDATION TRUST 
 
2.1 The East of England Ambulance Service NHS Trust is applying to become an 

NHS Foundation Trust NHS. This is explained in the attached document. 
 
2.2 It is argued by the Ambulance Service that the establishment of an NHS 

Foundation Trust will give local people a much greater say in the service and 
how it develops. The exisiting Trust currently serves a population of 5.8 
million people in Bedfordshire, Cambridgeshire, Essex, Hertfordshire, Norfolk 
and Suffolk. It provides a range of services and has one of the highest patient 
satisfaction ratings in the NHS at around 97%. 

 
2.3 The questions that have been asked as part of the consultation are: 
 

1. Do you support the vision and future plans? (pages 5-6) 
 
2. Do you agree with the proposed public constituencies and the number 

of governors each constituency will have? (page 8) 
 
3. Do you agree that 16 should be the youngest age to become a 

member? (page 8) 
 
4. Do you agree with the general proposals for staff membership? (page 

9) 
 
5. Do you agree that staff and volunteers should be made members with 

the option to opt out? (page 9) 
 
6. Do you agree with the proposed organisations to sit on the Members’ 

Council as appointed governors? (page 10) 
 
7. Have you got any alternative suggestions on which organisations 

should be represented on the Members’ Council? (page 10) 
 
8. Is there a particular seldom heard group you think should be 

represented? (page 10) 
 
9. Do you agree with the proposed make-up of the Members’ Council 

and the proportion of governors in each category? (page 12) 
 
10. What service improvements would you like to see? 
 

Agenda Item 8

45



11. Is there anything else you would like to say about future plans around 
the application to be an NHS Foundation Trust? 

 
2.4 In the past, when the Panel has been consulted on proposals by an NHS 

organisation to become an NHS Foundation Trust, Members have expressed 
concerns that the change could result in the transfer of services to other 
providers or to the community. There is a need to ensure that there is 
sufficient funding available to provide an adequate level of service. 

 
2.5 On the question of the Foundation Trusts’ strategic plans, Members have 

previously stressed the need for a comprehensive performance management 
framework to be adopted, which includes actions, targets and performance 
monitoring. In addition, Members have been of the view that any plans to 
work in partnership with other agencies should identify agreed and clearly 
defined roles to ensure effective service delivery. 

 
2.6 Public involvement in membership of Foundation Trusts has been welcomed 

as a way to facilitate an exchange of views. The Panel has expressed the 
opinion that Foundation Trusts should take every opportunity to engage with 
its members; however, to help maintain their long-term commitment, the 
Foundation Trust should demonstrate that their contribution is valued and 
meaningful. Members have also suggested that young people might be 
encouraged to become Members of the Foundation Trust by engaging them 
through schools and existing youth groups.  

 
2.7 The Panel has further previously commented on the composition and balance 

of representation on Boards of Governors. It has been suggested that the 
business community and commercial sector should be represented on Boards 
in order to enhance their ability to manage the Trust’s finances. 

 
2.8 Finally, the Panel has recommended that every effort should be made to 

minimise the cost of re-branding should the application be successful. 
 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 The Council has been consulted by the East of England Ambulance Service 

NHS Trust on its plans to become an NHS Foundation Trust. A series of 
questions has been asked as part of the consultation. Members are invited to 
consider whether to respond to the East of England Ambulance Service NHS 
Trust and, if so, the form that the response should take. The kind of issues 
that Overview and Scrutiny Panels have previously raised when consulted by 
other parts of the NHS on similar proposals have been reported to assist with 
this. 

 
Background documents 
 
Correspondence received from the East of England Ambulance Service NHS Trust 
on its plans to become an NHS Foundation Trust 
 
the East of England Ambulance Service NHS Trust on its plans to become an NHS 
Foundation Trust website 
 
Contact Officer: A Roberts, Scrutiny and Review Manager -  01480 388015. 

46



East of England Ambulance Service
NHS Trust

Your service,  
your say

Consultation document
Help us make a difference to the lives of people  
in the east of England

We are seeking your views on our plans 
to become an NHS Foundation Trust.

Consultation: 4th October – 31st December 2010
47



Contents
Welcome and introduction 1

About us 2

What is an NHS Foundation Trust and  3
why do we want to become one? 

Recent achievements 4

Our plans for the future 5

How we will be run 7

Members and Members’ Council 7

Members’ Council and its  11
responsibilities 

Board of Directors 13

What happens next? 14

Your views 17

Become a member 19

48



Welcome and introduction
Thank you for taking the time to read our plans for becoming an NHS Foundation 

Trust. This booklet explains in further detail what a foundation trust is, how it will 

work and why it is the right move for us.

In order to build our vision for the future, we intend to create opportunities for more patient 

and public involvement by becoming an NHS Foundation Trust, ultimately helping to improve 

patient care. Becoming a foundation trust will be the best way to ensure our exciting plans to 

improve our services for people in the east of England become a reality.

Last year, we provided services for nearly two million patients across the eastern region and we 

place high quality patient care at the heart of everything that we do. We are moving towards 

a more tailored service for patients and away from a ‘one size fits all’ service, and as a foun-
dation trust we will have the independence to implement these planned improvements more 

quickly, so that our patients can reap greater benefit sooner.

It also means we will have closer links with those who are most important to us – our patients, 

staff, volunteers and the communities we serve. And you can have a greater influence on  

services in your area by becoming a member, so please sign up and support your ambulance 

service.

From 4th October until the 31st December 2010 we will be consulting with patients, staff,  

volunteers, partners and members of the public about our plans and ideas. Throughout this  
document there are a number of questions we would like you to answer and give us feedback on.

Please give us your opinions and sign up as a member by completing the forms at the back of 
this document and returning them by 31st December 2010 or submitting it online at  

www.foundationtrust.eastamb.nhs.uk

We look forward to hearing your views and to welcoming you as a member of the new East of 
England Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust.

Your service, your say        1

Hayden Newton
Chief Executive

Maria Ball
Chair

49



2

About us
Last year, the East of England Ambulance Service 

provided high quality care to nearly two million 

patients across the eastern region. Our vision 

is to be the recognised leader in emergency, 

urgent and out-of-hospital care in the east of 

England. 

Established in 2006, we are the only NHS  

organisation providing direct health care across 

the entire eastern region and our patient  

satisfaction is one of the highest in the NHS 

at round 97%.  While we are best known for 

our 999 emergency response we also provide a 

range of other services including:

 Primary care operations  – such as GP, 

 district nursing and a range of out of  

 hours services

 Scheduled transport services – providing 

 pre planned transport including patient  

 transport, courier transport and acute  

 neonatal transport services

 Special and partnership operations – 

 including resilience and emergency  

 planning, working with charities and air  

 ambulance services, community  

 volunteers and the Hazardous Area  

 Response Team (specially trained teams  

 who provide the ambulance response to  

 major incidents in hazardous  

 environments to provide aid to casualties  

 in situ).

The Trust currently serves a population of 5.8 

million people covering Bedfordshire,  

Cambridgeshire, Essex, Hertfordshire, Norfolk 

and Suffolk. We employ 4,000 staff and more 

than 2,000 volunteers who all work towards 

ensuring that patients get the right treatment 

in the right place at the right time.

Our annual in turnover was £223m in 2009/10. 

Although we provide a range of services to 

non-NHS organisations, the majority of our 

income comes from within the NHS. 

50



Your service, your say        3

What is an NHS 
Foundation Trust 
and why do we want 
to become one? 
NHS Foundation Trusts were introduced in 

2004, and there are now 130 in England. Being 

a foundation trust has significant advantages as 

they are free from central government control 

and more accountable to the communities that 

they serve. 

NHS Foundation Trusts are organised in such a 

way that people from local communities, members 

of staff, volunteers, patients and partner  

organisations (such as local authorities), can 

have a much bigger say in influencing health 

services. Foundation trusts are established as 

public benefit corporations, modelled on  

co-operative and mutual traditions and are  

accountable to their members. More information 

on how this works in practice is detailed later in 

this consultation document. 

We believe that as a foundation trust we will be 

able to work more closely with members of the 

public in our area, reflecting their needs better 

in the development of our services; ensuring 

that health care is timely and effective; making 

a major contribution to the wellbeing of people 

in our community; and having much greater 

local participation in addressing the difficult 

financial challenges ahead for the Trust and 

public sector generally.

We will have more freedom to look for better 

ways of meeting our own patients’ particular 

needs and priorities - but we will still be closely 

inspected to make sure we achieve all NHS 

standards. An independent regulator called 

Monitor, along with the Care Quality Commission, 

makes sure that NHS Foundation Trusts meet 

the required standards. 

We will have new powers to enter into legal 

and financial agreements that will strengthen  

relations with existing partners to improve  

patient care, helping us to forge new partnerships 

and enable us to develop services more effectively 

to meet the needs of our patients. We will also 

have more freedom to borrow and to invest to 

help develop these new services. 

Another advantage of becoming a foundation 

trust is that we can give a greater say to our 

staff as we intend that they should all become 

members. Our staff are absolutely critical to the 

Trust’s success - they are each an expert in their 

own field. As members of a foundation trust 

they will not only continue to provide services, 

but will have a greater input into service  

development and how the organisation is run. 

This will build on our existing partnerships with 

staff. 

We have already been through a preliminary 

process which has shown us how we can  

become even better as we work towards  

foundation trust status. We are already very 

proud of our achievements, which resulted in 

us being one of the best performing ambulance 

service in the country last year. We know that 

becoming an NHS Foundation Trust will help us 

to continue to improve our performance for the 

benefit of patients and the public in the east of 

England.

51



4

Recent  
achievements 
 Despite an increase in the number of 999

 calls during 2009/10 we met all our  

 category A (potentially life threatening)  

 call performance targets and improved  

 on our performance from the previous  

 year. An improvement was also seen in  

 our category B (non-life threatening) call  

 performance against a demand increase.

 We gained ISO accreditation for our 

 patient transport services, courier  

 transport services and Medicom (a call  

 handling service for a range of service  

 providers).

 We achieved a four year accreditation for 

 our out of hours GP registrar training  

 from the NHS East of England  

 Multi-Professional Deanery.

 Our driving school was the first nationally

 to achieve Institute of Advanced Motorists 

 accreditation for their advanced driver  

 award.

 The roll out of the Hazardous Area 

 Response Team (HART) means that  

 specially trained paramedics can now  

 work safely in difficult environments, such 

 as a collapsed building and work  

 alongside firefighters to provide aid to  

 casualties in situ - something never  

 possible before. 

 New stroke specialists have been 

 appointed to make sure all of our staff  

 can recognise a stroke and know what  

 to do, ensuring diagnosis is prompt and  

 that specialist centres are pre-alerted  

 before patients are taken to hospital.

 We have invested in 136 new frontline 

 vehicles and purchased £2.4m worth  

 of medical devices, including eighty  

 12-lead defibrillators and 296 automated  

 external defibrillators (portable devices  

 that automatically analyse the heart’s  

 rhythm and treat potentially life  

 threatening cardiac conditions such as a  

 cardiac arrest).

 The Call Vision system, which was already 

 in place in our Chelmsford control room,  

 has been installed in Bedford and  

 Norwich. This uses mobile phone masts  

 or residential details to tell a dispatcher  

 where the call is coming from before it  

 has been answered, allowing us to  

 allocate a vehicle as early as possible.

 We have introduced a single digital radio 

 system across the region giving a more  

 resilient radio network using the latest  

 technology.

52



Your service, your say        5

Our plans for the 
future 
The challenges ahead
The Trust, like every NHS organisation, faces 

some challenging times ahead. There has been 

significant investment in the NHS in recent 

years, but the service now faces the need to 

balance the ongoing increase in demand for its 

services against future budgetary pressures. At 

the same time the need to focus on quality as 

well as performance is recognised in order to 

further improve the care patients receive.

We believe that the current system does not 

always provide the most appropriate response 

for patients. Not all patients need to, or want 

to, go to accident and emergency (A&E) when 

they call 999.  There is a need, where possible 

and appropriate, to have more patients being 

treated at home or in community settings.  

This is often more clinically effective, more cost 

effective and provides a better overall  

experience and outcome for patients.  While 

this means that patients will receive a higher 

quality of care, it will be different from what 

they currently get and expect.

The traditional response to 999 calls is to send 

an ambulance or rapid response vehicle, with 

a significant number being transferred to 

hospital for further care. Evidence from both 

A&E departments and the ambulance service 

suggest that it is only the minority of calls or 

attendances that genuinely warrant an  

emergency response and that there are real 

opportunities to care for patients  

differently and provide more effective services. 

This ‘one size fits all’ approach needs to 

change so that the individual needs of patients 

can be met more effectively. This may include 

more advanced assessment and care over the 

phone, the ability to send a range of different 

responses to assess and provide care (through 

GPs, district nurses, social services and  

advanced paramedics) and the ability of  

ambulance staff to access and refer patients 

to other health and community services as an 

alternative to hospital. 

So, the Trust needs to care for many more  

patients, significantly develop its staff and  

services, and provide higher quality care. And 

this needs to be done within the current  

challenging financial climate.

The Trust believes it is the best placed  

organisation in the eastern region to coordinate 

urgent and emergency care. The service is 

highly trusted and respected by patients and  

is a high performing and reliable 24/7 NHS 

emergency service. The Trust can ensure that 

patients who have urgent or emergency medical 

needs have immediate access to the NHS, get 

assessed quickly and competently, and through 

an integrated service, be provided with or  

directed to the appropriate care services. 

53



6

Shaping the future
Many people call 999 because they are not 

sure if it is an emergency and they do not know 

where to go for help. They often default to the 

two trusted and most accessible services, A&E 

departments and the 999 service. 

The Trust should be able to direct them and 

help them receive the care they really need.  

Getting this right will mean patients receive 

the precise care they require more quickly and 

maximise the organisation’s capacity to reach 

patients whose condition requires an emergency 

response even faster.

Central to achieving this is a three-year- 

programme of service re-design to develop and 

test different ways of working.  To bring such 

change is going to require:

 Enhanced capabilities to assess 999 

 callers via the phone and provide them  

 with access to the right service for them

 Considering alternative access 

 arrangements for urgent but non  

 emergency calls, such as a 111 number

 Placing an emphasis on providing a 

 clinical assessment and treatment rather  

 than defaulting to stabilising the patient  

 and transporting them to hospital

 A paramedic response only if face-to-face 

 emergency response is required

 Building the skills of the workforce to be 

 able to address patients needs in the  

 community

 Providing and signposting to alternatives 

 to accident and emergency, such as  

 community services, other treatment  

 facilities and other health professionals

 Providing non emergency transport 

 where necessary. 

The aims of the change are to: deliver high 

quality patient-centred services; ensure more 

people calling 999 are treated without the need 

to go to hospital; improving patients’ experience 

and quality of care; improving productivity and 

cutting costs; and developing different ways of 

accessing care and treatment.

The Trust is at an early stage of this programme 

and is currently reviewing how it delivers its 

services, and identifying areas which can be  

improved.  As part of our public consultation 

we will be holding a series of meetings to  

discuss our plans and ideas with staff, volunteers, 

patients and the public, partner organisations 

and other stakeholders.

Question: 
Do you support our  
vision and our future plans?

54



Your service, your say        7

How we will be 
run
Becoming an NHS Foundation Trust means the 

way we operate will change. The population 

served by the Trust and its staff and partners 

will be directly involved in monitoring what we 

do and how services are developed. 

We will achieve this by establishing a membership 

that is made up of local people, staff, volunteers 

and partner organisations and which reflects 

the diversity of the six counties we cover. By 

becoming a member you will be able to have a 

greater influence on how we are run. 

The Board of Directors will be responsible 

for the day to day management of the Trust, 

monitor its performance and plan its strategic 

direction. The board will, in turn, be accountable 

to the Members’ Council. 

The members, whether public or staff, will also 

elect most of the Members’ Council to represent 

them. These representatives will be called 

governors. A number of partner organisations 

like local authorities, healthcare and voluntary 

agencies will be invited to appoint the remainder. 

The Trust chairman will chair the Members’ 

Council. 

Members and 
Members’ Council
Membership to the East of England Ambulance 

Service NHS Foundation Trust is free. Being in 

a position to help local people and health services 

can bring much satisfaction. Join us as a member 

and you will be able to do some or all of the 

following: 

 Elect governors to the Members’ Council 

 to represent you

 Stand for election as a governor of the 

 Members’ Council yourself

 Become actively involved in our work and 

 help shape our future plans

 Advise on the needs and views of the 

 local community

 Get a better understanding about what 

 we do and help promote our work.

The Trust will provide support for the membership 
and governors which includes the role of a 
dedicated membership office which will be 
responsible for:

 Providing administrative support to 
 ensure effective flow of information  
 between the Trust, members and  
 governors

 Co-ordinating the administrative process 
 associated with the elections to the  
 Members’ Council

 Maintaining the membership database 
 and providing high level reports on  
 membership.

We are proposing to have two categories of 
membership – public and staff. We are aiming  
to have 3,000 public members and 3,000 
staff members by the time we are authorised 
by independent regulator Monitor to become 
an NHS Foundation Trust in 2012.  Following 
foundation trust approval, we would be looking 
to increase our membership so as to involve, 
and engage with, more members of the public, 
staff and volunteers.

55



8

Members of the public

We propose that you will be eligible to join if 

you are over 16 years old and live in one of 

the six counties covered by the Trust. We are 

proposing a minimum age of 16 to become a 

member as this is in line with Monitor’s  

recommendations. As a member of the public 

you will be part of what is known as the ‘public 

constituency’ of the overall membership.

We plan to have six constituencies based on the 

counties we cover. The total number of governors 

representing members of the public will be 13 

and the number representing each constituency 

will be proportionate to the population in each 

(as detailed in the table below).

Public constituencies

        Constituency Population 000s      Governors 
  Constituency 1:  Bedfordshire 605  1

Constituency 2:  Cambridgeshire 778  1

Constituency 3:  Essex  1,720  4

Constituency 4:  Hertfordshire  1,095  3

Constituency 5:  Norfolk 853 2

Constituency 6:  Suffolk 714  2

Questions: 
Do you agree with the  
proposed public constituencies  
and the number of governors  
each constituency will have?

Do you agree that 16  
should be the youngest age  
to become a member?

Beds

Cambs

Essex

Norfolk

Suffolk

Herts

56



Your service, your say        9

Members of staff and  
volunteers

We are proposing an ‘opt out’ scheme so that 

all eligible staff and volunteers become members 

automatically unless they specify they do not 

wish to be. The alternative model is to have staff 

and volunteers ‘opt in’ to become member, but 

we are not proposing this as staff and volunteers 

are so vital in delivering services to patients and 

users and need to be involved in how the Trust 

develops and is run.

We propose that staff will be eligible if:

 They are employed by the Trust under a 

 contract of employment which has no  

 fixed term, or has a fixed term of at least  

 12 months

or:

 They have been continuously employed by 

 the Trust under a contract of employment  

 for at least 12 months

or:

 A volunteer who has been working with 

 the Trust for at least 12 months.

There will be four staff groups and the number 

of elected Members’ Council representatives will 

be:

 Emergency operations - 2

 Primary care operations and scheduled 

 transport services - 1

 Support services - 1

 Volunteers – 1 

Questions: 
Do you agree with the general  
proposals for staff membership?

Do you agree that our staff and 
volunteers should be made  
members with the option to  
opt out?

57



10

Appointed governors –  
stakeholders and partners

It is mandatory for every NHS Foundation Trust 

to have a number of governors from relevant 

public or voluntary organisations. It is proposed 

that appointed governors will be sought on 

the basis of their ability to assist the Trust in the 

delivery of its strategic objectives. Appointed 

governors will be sought from the organisations 

outlined below:

 One governor will be nominated from the 

 lead commissioning primary care trust 

 One governor will be nominated from the

 East of England Local Government  

 Association representing the 52 local  

 authorities across the six counties served  

 by the Trust

 One governor will be nominated from 

 Age UK

 One governor will be nominated from 

 British Heart Foundation

 One governor will be nominated from a 

 seldom heard group based on the  

 outcome of the consultation. Examples of 

 seldom heard groups are people with 

 learning or sensory disabilities, those  

 whose first language is not English, young  

 people and traveller communities.

We are proposing to have an appointed  

governor from Age UK and the British Heart 

Foundation as our biggest service users are  

elderly and cardiac patients. As part of our  

public consultation we want to know if you 

agree with these proposals or if you think we 

should have appointed governors from other 

partner organisations such as the emergency 

services, other NHS organisations, universities 

and so on.

Questions: 
Do you agree with the proposed 
organisations to sit on the  
Members’ Council as governors?

Have you got any alternative  
suggestions on which organisations 
should be represented on our 
Members’ council?

Is there a particular seldom  
heard group you think should  
be represented?

58



Your service, your say        11

Members’  
Council and its 
responsibilities
We propose that the body that will represent 

members will be called the Members’ Council 

and that it will be made up of governors who 

are elected by members or nominated by partner 

organisations.

The council will be expected to:

 Work closely with the Board of Directors

 Contribute ideas and advice on future 
 planning

 Provide a link between the ambulance 
 service and its communities, and  
 represent the views of members

 Be responsible for reviewing the Trust’s 
 membership strategy, as well as  
 recruiting members and encouraging  
 them to stand as potential governors

 Be actively involved in advisory groups, 
 sub-committees and other forums set up 
 by the Trust

The council’s legal responsibility will be to:

 Appoint the Trust’s chair and 
 non-executive directors

 Agree pay for non-executive directors 
 including the chair

 Approve the appointment of the Trust’s 
 chief executive

 Appoint the auditor of the foundation 
 trust

 Receive the annual report and accounts

 Be consulted on proposed changes to 
 how services are delivered

We plan to have a total of 23 governors on our 
Members’ Council, not including the chair.

They will be made up of:

 Thirteen members of the public

 Five members of staff

 Five stakeholder representatives

Elected governors may hold office for up to 

three years following their successful election 

and are eligible for re-election for a second 

term.  An elected governor will not be able to 

hold office for more than six consecutive years.

59



12

Planned governance structure

Governance arrangements will evolve to reflect the changes in how services are commissioned as 
we know primary care trusts will cease to exist from 2013.

6 - 8 
Non executive 

directors

(including the 
chairman)

5 
Stakeholders

13 Public - elected

4 
Executive  
directors

Chief executive

Financial  
director

Medical/dental 
practitioner

Registered 
nurse/ 

midwife

1 PCT 
(lead  

commissioner)

1 East of 
England 

Local  
Government 
Association

1 Age UK

1 British Heart 
Foundation

1 Seldom heard 
group (TBC)

5 Staff - elected

Chairman
11 - 15 

Board of  
directors

23 
Members’ 

Council

Constituency  
1:

Bedfordshire
1

Constituency  
2:

Cambridgeshire
1

Constituency  
3:

Essex
4

Constituency  
4:

Hertfordshire
3

Constituency  
5:

Norfolk
2

Constituency  
6:

Suffolk
2

Class 1: 
Emergency 
Operations

2

Class 2: 
Primary Care and 

Scheduled Transport 
Services

1

Class 3: 
Support 
Services

1

Class 4: 
Volunteers

1

Question: 
Do you agree with the proposed 
make-up of the Members’ Council 
and the proportion of governors  
in each category?

1-3 
Executive  
directors

Constitution 
includes 

provision for  
other 

executive 
directors

60



Your service, your say        13

Board of  
Directors
The Board of Directors will be responsible for 

the day to day management and strategic  

development of the foundation trust.

 We propose it should consist of:

 A non-executive chair

 Between five and seven non-executive 

 directors

 Between five and seven executive 

 directors including the chief executive,  

 a finance director, a registered nurse or  

 midwife and a  registered dental or  

 medical practitioner.

The chair and non-executive directors will be 

appointed by the Members’ Council. To be 

eligible for appointment the individual must be 

a member of the public constituency. We are 

proposing that any non-executive director in 

post at the time of authorisation will remain in 

post for a minimum of 12 months or for the 

remainder of their term of service.

The chair of the Board of Directors will also 

chair the Members’ Council. The chair will have 

the casting vote at the Board of Directors and 

at the Members’ Council meetings, if required. 

A deputy chair and senior independent  

director will be appointed by the Board of  

Directors from amongst the non-executive 

directors in consultation with the Members’ 

Council. A lead governor will be appointed by 

the Members’ Council.

61



14

What happens 
next?
Tell us what you think
We would like your views on our proposals to 

become an NHS Foundation Trust. You have 

until Friday 31st December, 2010 to let us 

know what you think and you can do so by 
either completing the feedback form at the 

back of this document or by filling in the form 

online at www.foundationtrust.eastamb.

nhs.uk 

Become a member
Have a voice in how your local ambulance service  

is run. Simply complete the membership form 

at the back of this document or online at 
www.foundationtrust.eastamb.nhs.uk

Date Area Location Time

26th October 2010 Bury St Edmunds Moreton Hall  2pm – 4pm 
  Community Association  
  & Club, Symonds Road,  
  Bury St Edmunds,  
  IP32 7EW

2nd November 2010 King’s Lynn Assembly Room,  2pm – 4pm 
  the Town Hall,  
  Saturday Market Place,  
  King’s Lynn, PE30 5DQ

9th November 2010 Bedford St Marks Church Hall,  5pm – 7pm 
  Calder Rise, Bedford,  
  MK41 7UY

11th November 2010 Cambridge Cambridge  5pm – 7pm 
  Professional  
  Development Centre,  
  Forster Road,  
  Trumpington, CB2 9NL

Want to know more?
We will be arranging events across the east of England during the consultation period where you 

can speak to us in person about our proposals. The dates of these events are:

62



Your service, your say        15

16th November 2010 Luton High Town  5pm – 7pm 
  Community Sports &  
  Arts Centre,  
  Concorde Street,  
  Luton, LU2 0DJ

18th November 2010 Colchester Hythe  4pm – 6pm 
  Community Centre,  
  1 Ventura Drive,  
  Colchester, CO1 2FG

23rd November 2010 Peterborough The Salvation  4pm – 6pm 
  Army Centre,  
  New England Room,  
  1203 Bourges Boulevard,  
  Peterborough,  
  PE1 2AU

26th November 2010 Ipswich Red Cross Centre,  4pm – 6pm 
  15 Chevallier Street,  
  Ipswich, IP1 2PF

30th November 2010 Southend on Sea Salvation Army,  2pm – 4pm 
  239 London Road,  
  Hadleigh, SS7 2RF

3rd December 2010 Chelmsford Shire Hall, Hall Keepers,  2pm – 4pm 
  The County Hall,  
  Duke Street,  
  Chelmsford, CM1 1LX

6th December 2010 Norwich Forum Norwich, The Cube,  5pm – 7pm 
  2 Millennium Plain,  
  Norwich, NR2 1TF

9th December 2010 Welwyn Garden City Vineyard Barn,  5pm – 7pm 
  Welwyn Hatfield  
  Borough Council,  
  Campus West,  
  The Campus, Welwyn  
  Garden City, AL8 6BX

14th December 2010 Watford Hunts Hall,  5pm – 7pm 
  St Marks Church,  
  Leggatts Way,  
  Watford, WD24 5NQ

Please visit our website at www.foundationtrust.eastamb.nhs.uk for latest details of events 
as these may change due to unforeseen circumstances. 
Online copies of our consultation document can also be found there. In addition we will also be 
holding a number of events for staff and partner organisations.

63



16

Foundation trust timeline
The broad timeline for our foundation trust application process is as follows:
October – December 2010 Public consultation
November 2011 Seek formal approval from the Secretary of State for Health for our 
  foundation trust application

Late spring 2012  Anticipated time for becoming a foundation trust 

Please complete and detach the following forms and return in the pre-paid envelope provided  
or to: 

Freepost RRRA-UHTH-CZYR,  
Foundation Trust Office,  
East of England Ambulance Service,  
Broomfield, Chelmsford,  
CM1 7WS

64



Your service, your say        17

Your views
1. Do you support our vision and our future plans? (pages 5-6)

 q Yes

 q No

 

2. Do you agree with the proposed public constituencies and the number of  
 governors each constituency will have? (page 8)

 q Yes

 q No

 

3. Do you agree that 16 should be the youngest age to become a member? (page 8)

 q Yes

 q No

 

4. Do you agree with the general proposals for staff membership? (page 9)

 q Yes

 q No

 

5. Do you agree that our staff and volunteers should be made members with the  
 option to opt out? (page 9)

 q Yes

 q No

 

6. Do you agree with the proposed organisations to sit on the Members’ Council as  
 appointed governors? (page 10)

 q Yes

 q No

 

7. Have you got any alternative suggestions on which organisations should be  
 represented on our Members’ Council? (page 10)

 q Yes

 q No

8. Is there a particular seldom heard group you think should be represented? (page 10)

 q Yes

 q No

 

Additional comments

Additional comments

Additional comments

Additional comments

Additional comments

Additional comments

Additional comments

Additional comments

65



9. Do you agree with the proposed make-up of the Members’ Council and the  
 proportion of governors in each category? (page 12)

 q Yes

 q No

 

10. What service improvements would you like to see?

 

11. Is there anything else you would like to say about future plans around our  
 application to be an NHS Foundation Trust?

12. Which constituency do you live in? (please tick box)

  q Bedfordshire

  q Cambridgeshire

  q Essex

  q Hertfordshire

  q Norfolk

  q Suffolk

13. Are you:  (please tick box)

  q A member of the public

  q A member of staff

  q A partner organisation

Thank you for your feedback. As part of our public consultation we will be producing a  
report which details the feedback we have given. As such we may use your comment in this  
consultation report, although anything we use will remain anonymous.

Please cut along the lines and return your feedback form in the pre-paid envelope provided or 
to: Freepost RRRA-UHTH-CZYR, Foundation Trust Office , East of England Ambulance Service, 
Broomfield, Chelmsford, CM1 7WS

Additional comments

18

Comments

Comments

66



Your service, your say        19

Become a member
You can either become a member online by following the foundation trust links at  
www.foundationtrust.eastamb.nhs.uk or filling out this form and posting it in the pre-paid envelope. 

Membership registration form

Title: Dr q    Mr q    Mrs q    Ms q    Miss q  (please tick box)

First name:                                            Surname:

Full address: 

                                                                                         Postcode: 

Telephone: 

Email: 

The following few questions will help us ensure our membership is representative of the  
population we serve and will be treated in the strictest confidence.

Your gender is
 M q  F q  (please tick box)

Your date of birth is: 

Please state your ethnicity:

  q White British   

  q White Irish 

  q Chinese 

  q White & Asian 

  q White & Black Caribbean 

  q Pakistani 

  q Other mixed background 

  q Indian 

  q Black African 

  q White and Black African 

  q Bangladeshi 

  q Other Asian 

  q Black Caribbean Other Black 

  q Other White 

  q Any other ethnic group 

  q Prefer not to state

We would prefer to send you information about the Trust and membership issues by email. If 
you would prefer to receive this by post, please tick this box. q  

67



20

Please indicate below how you might like to be involved as a member:  (please tick box)

q Receiving regular information

q Attend meetings or events 

q Consider standing for election to the Members’ Council

q Become a volunteer 

q Helping with surveys 

q Taking part in discussion groups 

I would like to become a member of the East of England Ambulance Service NHS Trust which is 
becoming a foundation trust

Signed: 

Date: 

Please cut along the lines and return your membership form in the pre-paid envelope provided or 
to: Freepost RRRA-UHTH-CZYR, Foundation Trust Office, East of England Ambulance Service, 
Broomfield, Chelmsford, CM1 7WS

In accordance with data protection legislation your membership details will be used solely for the 
purposes of your membership of the NHS Foundation Trust.

However by law we are required to maintain a public register showing only members’ names and 
constituencies. Please tick this box if you do not wish to be included in the public register. q 
(please tick box)

68



69



This document is also available on our website www.foundationtrust.eastamb.nhs.uk

Hard copy documents are available through the Chief Executive’s office, 
East of England Ambulance Service NHS Trust, Hammond Road, Bedford, MK41 0RG

If you would like these documents in large print, Braille, easy read, alternative format, 
or a different language please contact 0800 028 3021.

!"#$%&'()*&'+!,-*&,./&%#012&,#)32&4+,!53&04(0/&)!&'6)&5(6#)&7,!0&4)8&-!*)/&
+(,#!*&4*#,!0)&%!376/&9(0&04,#:;<=&;<>&;>;;

&%##!,?*&'#)8@

AB"B#&AB4&0!4)3'B)B+!0&,B&%)+)&"B(#B2&,#B)32&CD(!7)&E)!(!72&)!&F(5&74!0D')&5)'B&
5B(D+2&+'!)B&%B)(B05)&&

;>;;&;<>&:;<=&B(B&,'B0&3B&6B#&G4!#B&+B3B9H0)I&,B&+)4)&

JK&LKMKNOP&QRSKP&KMSK&TQUVKSQ&WXYPKMMQ&KX&UKSPOM&XOWQPKMZ&KX&[POWUUKZ&\]X&TQPXOSQ&
LWTKPK\SKZ&Q]&\Q]SPO&U^\_]OZ&YQP&TO`QP&aQ\SOaSK&;>;;&;<>&:;<=b

cKdKUW&aVaWOeRfg&QSPhfXOi&Sj&]UQSkj&l&L]dfX&LP]k]Z&l&[POWUUKm]Z&&l&W\\fX&TQPXOaWK&
U]R&l&W\\fX&Njhfk]&YPQMWXf&Q&kQ\SOkS&YQL&\]XKPKX&SKUKTQ\]&;>;;&;<>&:;<=b

nopq&rs&ts&uvwxpq&yvpz{qw|&}wz&t~v��~z&r&yx{�wq&�~zy�s�&�~q�wv�Z&
�~q�wv�&�~��p�Z&r&�p|wx~��wqr�v�&�v~��wx&qpq&��&�~z�v�&��s�xZ&
yv��pz�ow�Z&vt~����wxo|&r&�~zyyz&&yv&wxpx�v�z&;>;;&;<>&:;<=b

70



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS     7TH DECEMBER 2010 
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING)                    
 
 
 

REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
 
1.1  At its meeting on 18th November 2010, the Cabinet considered a report by the 

Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Social Well-Being) on the:-  
 

♦ Cambridgeshire Local Investment Plan; 
♦ Homelessness Strategy:  Consultation Draft. 

 
2. DELIBERTATIONS 
 
2.1 In endorsing the content of the Cambridgeshire Local Investment Plan, the 

Cabinet concurred with the Panel over the importance of upgrading the A14 as 
it plays a significant part in the road network infrastructure on local, national and 
European levels. 

 
2.2 With regard to the Homelessness Strategy, the Cabinet approved the draft 

strategy for consultation purposes.  In so doing, Members shared the concerns 
of the Panel that Government funding for the Homelessness Prevention Budget 
might not continue beyond 2010/2011. 

 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel are invited to note the contents of 

this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Contact Officer:  H Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer - Tel. 01480 

388008. 

Agenda Item 9

71



72

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Scrutiny Committee  
  
ADULTS, WELLBEING AND 
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

21st October 2010   
  
  Action 
   

32. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
 Members declared the following personal interests under paragraph 8 of the 

Code of Conduct: 
• Councillors Heathcock and J West as members of Cambridgeshire Older 

People’s Enterprise (COPE) 
• Councillor Brown as a member of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 

NHS Foundation Trust (CPFT) and a member of Cambridgeshire LINk 
• Councillor King as company secretary of the Bowthorpe Association, a 

charity providing mental health support for people in the Wisbech area 
• Councillor V McGuire as working, for a caring agency, with people with 

dementia  
• Councillor R West as a member of the Buckden Surgery Patients’ 

Association 
• Councillor Whelan as a board member of the Cambridge branch of the 

National Autistic Society, a member of CPFT, and an associate member 
of COPE 

• Councillor Wilkins as an associate member of COPE. 

 

   
33. ‘IMPROVING OLDER PEOPLE’S MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES IN 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE AND FENLAND’: CONSULTATION 
 

   
 The Committee received a presentation on and gave initial consideration to 

proposals by NHS Cambridgeshire (the Primary Care Trust, PCT) and CPFT 
for older people’s mental health services in Huntingdonshire and Fenland.  In 
attendance to present the proposals and respond to members’ questions and 
comments were 
 

• from NHS Cambridgeshire  
o John Ellis, Head of Mental Health, Learning Disability and 

Substance Misuse Commissioning 
o Aidan Fallon, Director of Communications and Patient Experience 
o Dr Emma Tiffin, HuntsComm GP lead for OPMH and a GP at 

Priory Fields Surgery, Huntingdon 
o Claire Warner, Commissioning and Service Improvement Manager, 

Mental Health, Learning Disability and Substance Misuse 
 

• from Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust 
o John Hawkins, General Manager, Older People's Mental Health 

(OPMH) Services  
o Dr Claire Lawton, Clinical Director, OPMH Services. 

 

The presentation (attached to these minutes as Appendix 1) outlined current 
provision, introduced the proposals under consultation, and reported on the 
responses received; a total of 18 responses had been received to date.   

 

   

Agenda Item 10

73



2 

 Members noted that the pilot primary mental health care service in St Ives 
was being welcomed by both patients and GPs; copies of the seventh 
quarterly report of the Older People's Mental Health Project were tabled for 
information. 

 

   
 The Committee questioned the representatives from the PCT and CPFT on 

various aspects of what was being proposed. 
 

   
 Financial matters 

 
Question: Given the history of financial difficulties experienced by both PCT 
and CPFT, and given that PCTs were likely to be phased out from April 2013, 
what assurance could be given that the funding to implement these proposals 
would be maintained? 

Answer: The Head of Mental Health Commissioning replied that the 
pilot in St Ives had given experience of what a reasonable service 
would look like.  The cost of care home provision and of day sessions 
had been calculated; he undertook to supply the figures. 
He added that, in accordance with the PCT’s Strategic Plan, it was 
necessary to continue to find savings, but amongst PCTs, NHS 
Cambridgeshire spent comparatively little on mental health services, 
and the £600m investment proposed would be of great benefit to 
patients.  While he could not give any guarantees, he believed these 
proposals to be cost-effective. 
The HuntsComm GP Lead said that, although the consortium had 
been only recently formed, OPMH was a priority for the consortium, 
and she believed that GPs were very committed to this work. 
Members were reassured that the duty to consult would apply to GP 
consortia once they became statutory bodies. 

 
Question:  Would moving day therapy from Hinchingbrooke to e.g. Hunter’s 
Down result in a higher cost of provision, because Hunter’s Down was 
outside the NHS? 

Answer:  The General Manager, OPMH Services, said that payment 
was already being made to Hinchingbrooke for day therapy places on 
Hawthorn Ward, and that same money would be used to pay for the 
relocated places elsewhere; negotiations were in progress with future 
providers. 

 
Question:  What confidence could be placed in the figure of £96,000 
investment allocation for local step-up / respite beds? 

Answer:  £96,000 represented the cost of specialist input into beds in 
care homes, over and above the basic cost of these beds.  The 
training provided in these care homes would have wider beneficial 
effects on the home as a whole, beyond the specialist beds. 
The proposal was not to replace hospital beds with care home beds, 
but to provide beds within care homes for respite use.  Some patients 
were currently in high-level mental health wards who did not need to 
be there; their needs could be better met elsewhere.  Acute beds 
would continue to be available in Peterborough for patients in 
Huntingdonshire and Fenland who required them. 

 

 

74



3 

Question:  What would happen if actual demand for services exceeded the 
estimated demand? 

Answer:  CPFT had a record of living within its financial means. 
 
Question:  To what extent did the investment allocation figures represent 
fixed costs or throughput costs? 

Answer:  The costs of clinics in local towns were fixed.  Staff costs 
were based on forecasts of the numbers of older people in the area 
and the evidence of the St Ives pilot.  It was possible that more people 
than expected would present, but numbers were likely to be fewer 
initially as people became accustomed to the new services. 

   
 Transport 

 
Question:  What would the £15,000 estimated transport funds for carers and 
family listed in the investment allocation provide? 

Answer:  The transport funds for carers and family were intended for 
families to visit hospital in-patients.  A starting-point for calculating 
them had been the average rate per mile and average distance to 
Peterborough multiplied by two visits per bed per week. 

 
Question:  Bearing in mind the still-unresolved difficulties with transport to 
Doddington identified in the course of the South Fenland Review in 2009, 
what was being done to ensure that the transport needs of patients would be 
met?   

Answer:  Transport was currently provided for eligible patients 
attending day therapy services, and transport would continue to be 
provided for those patients to the relocated services.  However, 
transport in general was a problem in the Huntingdonshire and 
Fenland area; meetings were taking place with other organisations 
and with the County Council transport team.  

 

   
 Identifying mental health needs 

 
Question: The consultation document referred to older people in hospital with 
unidentified mental health needs, but if it were to emerge that a person 
attending accident and emergency had a mental health problem, was it likely 
that this would be identified? 

Answer:  The Clinical Director, OPMH Services, pointed out that it was 
already the case that the mental health needs of  A&E patients were 
not always identified, with the result that they did not receive the 
support they required.   
A project was being undertaken at Hinchingbrooke to raise staff 
awareness of possible mental health needs; it was currently estimated 
that about half of the 150 older patients in Hinchingbrooke had mental 
health needs.  The National Dementia Strategy required acute trusts to 
take account of the needs of people with dementia, but the needs of 
those with depression were also of concern locally. The Alzheimer’s 
Society had produced a report Counting the Cost on the quality of care 
for people with dementia in hospital.   
 

 

75



4 

The Committee was also advised that a separate frequent attenders’ 
programme was looking at the needs of those who often had contacts 
with public services such as the Police and NHS.   A pilot scheme 
under which GPs were present in A&E departments at busy periods 
had resulted in a significant number of admissions being avoided.   

   
 Current provision 

 
Question:  Was the low take-up of day therapy places on Hinchingbrooke’s 
Hawthorn Ward a reflection of a problem in the referral process? 

Answer:  The way in which the day provision was structured might 
lead to some reluctance to refer people to Hawthorn Ward; it was far 
from ideal to have a hospital ward as the base for community therapy.    
If the ward were to be used at the same rate as day therapy elsewhere 
in the county, where day therapy facilities were located away from 
hospital wards, then there would be 3,500 – 4,000 attendances a year 
rather than the current 300 attendances. 
Other contributing factors to low take-up of places at Hinchingbrooke 
for an individual patient might be distance from home, or the non-
availability of the therapy needed.  

 

   
 Aspects and risks of proposed provision 

 
Comment:  There had been advantages to having in-patient beds closer to 
home; for example, Doddington had provided a valued service and relieved 
pressure on Peterborough. 

Answer:  Doddington beds had been community rehabilitation beds, 
over which CPFT had no control.  Feedback from GPs and patients 
was that they welcomed services in more accessible primary care and 
community settings, but for patients who did require acute care, the 
Peterborough beds were able to provide a better standard of 
accommodation and care than was available in Huntingdon or 
Wisbech.   
In-patient acute beds for men had for some time been at Peterborough 
rather than Hinchingbrooke.  Feedback from these patients had been 
positive; although further from home then Hinchingbrooke, the 
Peterborough facilities were better.  There had been only one 
complaint, from a relative about the distance to visit the patient.  

 
Comment:  The voluntary sector could have an important part to play in 
supporting the delivery of the proposed services.   

Answer:  Various mental health voluntary organisations were or would 
become involved in delivery of services; the Alzheimer’s Society was 
already supplying support workers as part of the pilot service in 
St Ives.  The HuntsComm GP lead for OPMH observed that part of the 
gateway worker’s role was to signpost people to other services, 
included voluntary ones, and help them find their way round what 
might be available to them. 
At the Chairman’s invitation, Gill Lintott, the Alzheimer’s Society’s 
Locality Manager for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough, informed 
members that the involvement of the Alzheimer’s Society had been of 
great benefit; through their workers, people had become more aware 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76



5 

of the services offered by the Society at an earlier stage.  There had 
been an increase of 50 – 100% in the referral rate to services in 
Huntingdonshire in two months in 2010 compared with the same two 
months in 2009, partly because of the pilot service and partly because 
of a general increase in awareness of dementia.  However, the Society 
needed sufficient resources to meet the increased demand. 
The HuntsComm GP lead for OPMH said that it was a huge benefit to 
have the Alzheimer’s Society involved in the St Ives pilot. 

 
Question:  Were there any plans to improve training for domiciliary care 
workers? 

Answer:  Work was in progress on ways of taking forward increased 
training in primary community care, given the huge number of 
organisations delivering this care, possibly using Commissioning for 
Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) money to do so.  Ideally, the PCT 
would insist on specific training standards before employing an 
agency, but that point had not yet been reached. 

 
Question:  What risks had been identified in relation to the successful 
implementation of the preferred option?  What was the transition plan?  It 
would greatly assist the Committee’s working group to draft the response to 
the consultation if it could have sight of any outline implementation plan and 
risk assessment. 

Answer:  The Head of Mental Health Commissioning advised the 
Committee that once the PCT had made its decision after the 
consultation period, there would be an implementation plan and risk 
register, and it would not be proper to pre-empt the PCT’s decision.  
However, a draft plan already existed and its summary could be 
shared with the working group on a confidential basis. 

 
Question:  What measures were in place to mitigate the effects of the 
possible impact on carers of caring for people at home?  Would enough 
respite care be made available to help them?   
 
Question:  How would the success of any changes following the consultation 
be determined?  What outcome measures would be used? 

Answer:  Arrangements were in hand for external evaluation of 
changes resulting from the consultation proposals; this would include 
evaluation of the impact on the whole health economy.  The St Ives 
primary care pilot was already being evaluated, with feedback 
published on a quarterly basis.  Patients also provided ongoing 
informal feedback to medical staff, and would continue to do so.   

 
Members asked that any evaluation take account of the impact on carers and 
also include evaluation of out of hours provision and the ease of accessing 
help out of hours. The Head of Mental Health Commissioning said that it was 
important that commissioners  of care and contract monitors monitor delivery  
of services and make use of feedback from patients and carers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JE 

   
 At the Chairman’s invitation, other representatives of organisations present 

contributed questions and comments. 
 

  
 

 

77



6 

 Robert Boorman of COPE said that he had received the consultation 
information on 5th October and had decided to get the questionnaire out to 
COPE members at COPE’s expense; he had contacted some members and 
found that they had been unaware of the consultation.  He pointed out that 
many older people did not use the internet.  He raised concerns about 
transport – taxis were expensive; dial-a-ride was well-established in Fenland 
but not everywhere in the county, and anyway was not available in the middle 
of the night; discharge from hospital did not necessarily happen at the 
promised time.  It was necessary to look more at the patients’ concerns. 

Responding, the Head of Mental Health Commissioning said that a 
meeting was already planned with COPE when these issues could be 
raised.  The Director of Communications offered to print material for 
COPE and said that the PCT needed to provide a concrete solution to 
transport to meet COPE’s concerns. 

 
David Jordan, Chair of the Mental Health Group of Cambridgeshire LINk, 
reported that he had exchanged letters with some of the officers present nad 
had every confidence that they would look after patients’ interests.  He was 
impressed by the sympathetic, practical and considerate way the consultation 
was being handled, and would personally recommend its proposals as the 
best way forward. 

 

   
 Establishment of working group 

The Committee agreed that Councillors Heathcock, King, K Reynolds, 
Shepherd, Walker, J West and R West form the working group to draft a 
response for consideration at the Committee meeting on 30th November.  

 

   
 The Chairman thanked all participants for their contributions to the meeting.  
   
34. CALLED IN DECISIONS  
   
 Members noted that no decisions had been called in since the despatch of 

the agenda. 
 

   
35. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
   
 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held on 

Tuesday 30th November 2010 at 2.30pm.  
 

 
 
 Members of the Committee in attendance: County Councillors G Heathcock 

(Chairman), S King, V McGuire, J West, F Whelan (substituting for Cllr 
Shepherd) and K Wilkins; District Councillors S Brown (Cambridge City) and 
R West (Huntingdonshire) 
 

Apologies: County Councillors S Austen, G Kenney and C Shepherd; District 
Councillors M Archer (Fenland), R Hall (South Cambridgeshire) and J Petts (East 
Cambridgeshire) 
 

Time:   10.30am – 12.40pm 
Place:  March Youth and Community Centre, Station Road, March 

 

 
 
 
 

Chairman 
78



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS   
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING)                    7TH DECEMBER 2010 
(ENVIRONMENTAL WELL-BEING)         7TH DECEMBER 2010 
(ECONOMIC WELL-BEING)                     9TH DECEMBER 2010 
 

 
WORK PLAN STUDIES 

(Report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services) 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to allow Members of the Panel to review their 

programme of studies and to be informed of studies being undertaken by the 
other Overview and Scrutiny Panels. 

 
2. STUDIES 
 
2.1 The Council has a duty to improve the social, environmental and economic well-

being of the District. This gives the Overview and Scrutiny Panels a wide remit to 
examine any issues that affect the District by conducting in-depth studies. 

 
2.2 Studies are allocated according to the Council’s service areas which have been 

identified as follows:- 
 

Social Well-Being 
 
Housing 
Community 
Leisure Centres 
Operations (part) 
Democratic and Central Services (part) 
People, Performance and Partnerships (part) 
 
Environmental Well-Being 
 
Environmental and Technical Services 
Planning Services 
Environmental Health 
Operations (part) 
 
Economic Well-Being 
 
Information Management 
Finance 
Customer Service and Call Centres 
Revenues 
Democratic and Central Services (part) 
Law, Property and Governance 
People, Performance and Partnerships (part) 
HQ/Accommodation 

 
2.3 Details of ongoing studies are set out in the attached Appendix. 
 

Agenda Item 11

79



 

2.4 Members are reminded that if they have a specific interest in any study area 
which is not being considered by their Panel there are opportunities for 
involvement in all the studies being undertaken. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Panel is requested to note the progress of the studies selected. 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Minutes and Reports from previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels. 
 
 
Contact Officers: Miss H Ali, Democratic Services Officer 
   01480 388006 
 
   Mrs J Walker, Trainee Democratic Services Officer 
   01480 387049 
 
   Mrs C Bulman, Democratic Services Officer 
   01480 388234 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80



 
ONGOING STUDIES 

 
STUDY 
 

OBJECTIVES PANEL STATUS TYPE 
 
 

Car Parking at 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital 

To investigate the causes 
of public complaints 
regarding the provision of 
parking facilities at the 
Hospital. 
 

Social Well-Being Six month review of new 
pricing structure to be 
conducted with the 
Hospital in December. 

Whole Panel Study 

Visitor Development & 
Town Centre Vibrancy 

To consider issues relating 
to Visitor Development & 
Town Centre Vibrancy. 

Economic Well-Being Further information 
requested on the cost of 
the tourism service and the 
benefits it brings to both 
the Council and to the 
District. 
 

Whole Panel Study 

Consultation Processes To review the Council’s 
current consultation 
processes with a view to 
determining whether the 
approach taken to 
consultation is suitable and 
consistent across the 
authority. 
 

Social Well-Being Panel has begun to scope 
this study. Report to be 
considered at Panel’s 
December meeting. The 
Policy and Strategic 
Services Manager will be 
in attendance at the 
meeting. 
 

Whole Panel Study 

Gypsy & Traveller Welfare 
 

To be determined pending 
receipt of background 
information on existing 
gypsy and traveller sites 
already established within 
the District. 
 
 

Social Well-Being Report requested for 
submission to a future 
meeting. Following 
consultation with the 
Chairman, agreed that the 
report would be deferred 
until further notice. 
 
 
 
 

To be determined. 

81



 
Health Implications of the 
Night Time Economy 

To follow up the previous 
study undertaken by the 
former Overview and 
Scrutiny (Service Support) 

Economic Well-Being Further information 
requested with regards to 
the rate of alcohol-specific 
hospital admissions for 
under 18s and the 
availability of any available 
qualitative data on alcohol 
consumption in rural areas.  
 
Alcohol Harm Reduction 
Co-ordinator asked to 
attend a future meeting to 
discuss the Alcohol Harm 
Reduction Strategy. 
 

Whole Panel Study 

Planning Conservation 
 
 

To consider & evaluate the 
role of the Council’s 
Planning Conservation 
Team in the preservation 
of Huntingdonshire’s built 
heritage with particular 
reference to conservation 
areas and listed buildings.  
 

Environmental Well-Being Working Group meetings 
held on 29th July, 5th 
August, 2nd September, 
7th and 22nd October, 11th 
and 18th November 2010. 

Working Group. 
 
 
 

Leisure Centre Financial 
Performance and 
Employment Structure 

To review the overall 
financial performance and 
monitoring arrangements. 
To consider the current 
Employment Structure. 
 

Economic Well-Being Requested further 
information for submission 
to future meeting. 

Whole Panel Study. 

CCTV Provision within the 
District 
 

To review the impact of the 
Council’s proposal to 
cease the CCTV service 
with effect from April 2010. 
  

Social Well-Being The views of the Police 
and the Huntingdonshire 
Community Safety 
Partnership have been 
sought on the impact of the 
Council’s proposals. A 
report to this effect will be 
submitted to the Panel’s 

Whole Panel Study. 

82



 
December meeting.  
 

Proposals to replace 
EEDA with LEPs. 

To establish the 
implications of these 
proposals. 
 

Economic Well-Being Presentation to be given to 
December meeting. 

To be determined. 

 A14 improvements. To review the implications 
to the local economy of the 
decision not to proceed 
with the A14 
improvements. 
 

Economic Well-Being Report requested for 
submission to a future 
meeting, 

To be determined, 

The Use of Consultants To review the criteria used 
in the appointment of 
consultants and assess the 
cost and value gained from 
using them. 
 

Economic Well-Being Working Group 
established. First meeting 
to be held on 30th 
November 2010. 
Discussion to be 
conducted at Panel 
meeting with Head of Law, 
Property & Governance, 
Head of Planning Services 
and Executive Councillor 
for Planning Strategy & 
Transportation.  

Working Group. 

The Financial Implications 
of the Council’s Future 
Housing Responsibilities. 

To be determined. Economic Well-Being Councillor M F Shellens to 
discuss with Chairman the 
possible terms of the 
study. 
 

To be determined. 

Tree Strategy To form a strategy in 
conjunction with the Tree 
Officers for the retention 
and planting of trees. 
 

Environmental Well-Being Working Group meetings 
on 5th and 24th November 
2010. 

Working Group. 

 
 
 
 

83



 
POSSIBLE FUTURE STUDIES 

 
 
The Employees 
Performance Development 
Review Process 
 
 

To review the current 
process. 

Economic Well-Being Outcome of Officer Review 
to be reported to the Panel 
when this is concluded. 
 
Work is expected to 
conclude in February 
2011. 

To be determined. 

Land Use for Agricultural 
Purpose in the context of 
planning policies and its 
contribution to the local 
economy. 
 
 

To review the lack of 
promotion and protection 
of land for this purpose. 

Environmental Well-Being Not being pursued as a 
study at the current time. 

To be determined. 

Rural Transport To review the lack of 
transportation in rural 
areas. 
 

Environmental Well-Being Not being pursued as a 
study at the current time. 

To be determined. 

 

84



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
13/05/09 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
01/09/09 

Future Governance of Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital: Consultation Arrangements 
 
This item was transferred over from the 
former Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery). Dr Stephen Dunn, 
Hinchingbrooke Next Steps Project Co-
ordinator and Ms Jessica Bawden, NHS 
Cambridgeshire attended the Panel’s 
January meeting to provide background 
to the consultation on the future 
governance arrangements for 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital. Advised the 
Panel that the consultation was likely to 
commence at some point in the middle of 
the current calendar year. 
 
Panel advised that Councillor S J Criswell 
had been appointed as the District 
Council representative on the 
Stakeholder Panel.  
 

 
 
 
Panel to partake in the 
consultation when it 
emerges. Matter to be 
raised at a future Panel 
meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public meeting of the Stakeholder Panel held 
on 26th November 2009 at 2pm, Huntingdon 
Library. Future public meetings scheduled as 
follows:- 
 

• 25th February 2010 
• 26th May 2010 
• 5th July 2010 
• 27th October 2010 
• 6th January 2011 

 

 
 
 

TBC 

 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 12

85



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
19/05/10 

 
 

Corporate Plan – Growing Success 
 
Councillors S J Criswell and R J West 
appointed to Corporate Plan Working 
Group. A previous decision has been 
made by the former Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel (Corporate and Strategic 
Framework) to extend the Corporate Plan 
Working Group’s remit by requesting it to 
investigate the cost implications of each 
priority area identified within the 
Corporate Plan. A suggestion has been 
made to invite Heads of Service to a 
future meeting to discuss their 
contributions in achieving the Council’s 
objectives. 
 

 
 
Quarterly performance 
reports to be submitted 
to all Overview and 
Scrutiny Panels in 
September, December, 
March and June of 
each year. 
 
Meeting of the 
Corporate Plan held on 
29th November 2010. 
 
 
 

 
 
This item appears elsewhere on the Agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
7/12/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

     
 
 
 
13/05/09 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Provision of Play Facilities for Young 
People  
 
This item was transferred over from the 
former Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) who had identified this 
subject as a potential area for study. 
Particular interest expressed on how 
these facilities are managed and insured 
and if they were maintained by the District 
Council. Report submitted to Panel in 
March 2009 and a Working Group was 
established, comprising Councillors J D 
Ablewhite and P G Mitchell, to meet with 

 
 
 
First meeting of the 
Working Group held on 
30th April 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Head of Operations and Service 
Development Manager undertook to 
investigate further, the likely insurance, 
resource (inspection) and maintenance costs 
of facilities located within the smaller 
Parishes.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2/06/09 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/10/09 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2/02/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

the Executive Councillor for Operational 
and Countryside Services to investigate 
the provision of play facilities, with a view 
to making recommendations on achieving 
an even distribution of facilities across the 
District and on meeting the ongoing 
revenue costs associated with such 
facilities. 
 
Owing to their interests in the study, 
Councillors Mrs P A Jordan and R J West 
were appointed on to the Working Group. 
Additionally, the Panel requested for an 
update on progress since the first 
meeting of the Working Group to be 
submitted to the Panel for information. 
 
Preliminary report outlining the findings of 
the Working Group to date considered by 
the Panel. Requested that the Working 
Group should meet with the Executive 
Councillor for Operational & Countryside 
Services to discuss the findings further. 
 
Further report considered. The Panel has 
recommended to the Cabinet that an 
agreement should be offered to Parishes 
to assist with the revenue costs of their 
facilities. It has also been recommended 
that the Council should also explore the 
co-ordination of a group insurance policy, 
with a view to achieving a lower premium. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request submitted to 
the Head of 
Operations. 
 
 
 
 
 
Working Group met 
with the Executive 
Councillor for 
Operational and 
Countryside Services. 
 
 
Final report to be 
considered by Cabinet 
on 22nd April 2010.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting of the Working Group held on 13th 
August 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

87



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
 

1/06/10 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
5/10/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
2/11/10 

 

Councillors P G Mitchell and R J West 
have been nominated to present the final 
report to the Cabinet. 
 
The Panel considered a progress report 
on the two recommendations that were 
endorsed by the Cabinet. The Panel has 
discussed whether to revisit its previous 
recommendations regarding the 
maintenance of outdoor youth facilities. 
Further financial details awaited before 
proceeding further. 
 
Attention was drawn to a Member led 
review being undertaken by the County 
Council’s Children and Young Peoples 
Services Committee on integrating 
children and young peoples services and 
social infrastructure provision into the 
County’s new communities. This report 
has been requested for circulation to 
Panel Members for background 
purposes. 
 
Details of estimated annual revenue costs 
associated with outdoor youth facilities 
received. Scrutiny and Review Manager 
was asked to circulate details of 
organisations providing services for 
inspection, assessment and insurance of 
these facilities around to the Panel. 
 

 
 
 
 
Request submitted to 
Service Development 
Manager. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Copy of report and the 
County Council’s 
Cabinet response was 
circulated electronically 
to the Panel on 24th 
November 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 
Circulated 
electronically to 
Members on 3rd 
November 2010. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

88



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
3/11/09 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1/12/09 
 
 
 
 
 

2/02/10 
 
 
 
 

1/06/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Monitoring of Section 106 Agreements 
 
Panel agreed to include the Monitoring of 
Section 106 agreements in its work plan, 
subject to gaining the agreement of the 
Development Management Panel. It was 
agreed that only allocated schemes and 
those developments where funding has 
been received for future maintenance of 
the facilities would be considered by the 
Panel. 
 
The Panel has requested that when the 
quarterly monitoring reports are due for 
consideration, a representative from the 
Operations Division should attend the 
Panel’s meeting. 
 
First monitoring report considered. 
Agreed that greater details on progress of 
schemes completed earliest should be 
included in the next monitoring report. 
 
Requests made for details of the 
developer involved in each Agreement to 
be included in future monitoring reports, 
together with further information on 
particular schemes which are currently 
pending allocation.  
 
 

 
 
Councillor P G Mitchell 
raised the matter at the 
Development 
Management Panel’s 
November meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request submitted to 
the Policy Officer. 
 
 
 
Request submitted to 
the Policy Officer and 
Service Development 
Manager. A response 
to the latter was 
circulated electronically 
to Members on 21st 
June 2010.  

 
 
The Development Management Panel 
expressed their support for the Social Well-
Being Panel to consider these schemes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

89



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
6/07/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/09/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2/11/10 
 

 
Agreed that additional information would 
be required to assist the Panel in 
scrutinising allocated schemes and 
existing maintenance agreements. 
Councillor P G Mitchell to meet with 
Scrutiny and Review Manager outside of 
the meeting to discuss this further. 
 
It has been suggested for a project plan 
to be developed for each scheme to 
include the project’s objectives, total cost, 
developer contributor(s), other funding 
sources and its trigger points. The Panel 
has endorsed the proposal which was 
considered by the Section 106 
Agreement Advisory Group on 11th 
October 2010. 
 
The outcome of the Advisory Group’s 
deliberations on the Panel’s proposal has 
been received. The Advisory Group did 
not concur with the Panel’s suggestion 
and expressed satisfaction with the 
current arrangements. Councillor P G 
Mitchell has undertaken to raise the 
matter at the Development Management 
Panel. 
  

 
Meeting held on 7th 
September 2010, 
together with the 
Chairman of the 
Section 106 Agreement 
Advisory Group. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Section 106 Agreement Advisory next due to 
meet on 10th January 2011. Next quarterly 
monitoring report anticipated February 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

01/02/11 

 
 
 

90



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
2/06/09 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1/09/09 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3/11/09 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1/12/09 

Car Parking at Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital 
 
Identified as a potential study area. 
Requested that a scoping report should 
be submitted to a future Panel meeting. 
 
 
 
 
Presentation delivered by the Scrutiny 
and Review Manager on the current 
parking provision on the Hinchingbrooke 
site, the scope available to increase the 
level of provision, other potential charging 
options, parking enforcement, the 
availability of public transport and the 
impact of parking on the surrounding 
area. 
 
The Panel sought clarification on a 
number of issues relating to the Hospital’s 
Green Travel Plan.  
 
Representatives from Cambridgeshire 
Link were also in attendance at the 
Panel’s November meeting and agreed to 
assist the Panel with its study. Agreed 
that Hinchingbrooke NHS Trust would be 
invited to a future meeting. 
 
The Chairman advised Members that the 

 
 
 
Scoping report 
considered by Panel in 
July 2009. Further 
information requested 
on the current parking 
situation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Letter submitted to 
Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital. 
 
Invitation to be 
extended to 
Hinchingbrooke NHS 
Trust. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Response from the Hospital received and 
noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

91



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2/02/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1/06/10 
 
 
 
 
 

6/07/10 
 

Hospital were conducting their own 
review of the parking arrangements and 
requested the Scrutiny and Review 
Manager to investigate this further. 
 
Mr C Plunkett, Facilities Business 
Manager attended the Panel meeting, 
along with representatives of 
Cambridgeshire LINK. The findings of the 
review undertaken by the Hospital was 
submitted to the Hospital’s Senior 
Executive Group at the end of February. 
Agreed that the Panel’s findings should 
also be forwarded to the Hospital.  
 
Members concurred with a suggestion 
that the Chairman should approach the 
Facilities Business Manager requesting 
an update on the Panel’s 
recommendations. 
 
Chairman reported that he had met with 
the Head of Facilities and Facilities 
Business Manager to discuss the revised 
pricing structure and car park concession 
which had come into effect on 1st July 
2010. Panel expressed support for the 
changes made and noted that they would 
be involved in the 6 monthly review 
undertaken by the Hospital. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
The Panel’s final report 
has been circulated 
electronically to 
Members and a copy 
sent to the Hospital. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Scrutiny and Review 
Manager to clarify with 
the Hospital the 
approach to be 
undertaken in respect 
of the review. The 
Huntingdon 
Neighbourhood Forum 
will be receiving a 
similar presentation at 
their meeting on 12th 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This item appears elsewhere on the Agenda.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/12/10  
 

92



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
January 2011. 
 

 
 
 

6/7/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/09/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5/10/10 

Consultation Processes 
 
Panel requested for a scoping report on 
the Council’s current consultation 
processes to be submitted to a future 
meeting. Members questioned whether 
the Council’s approach to consultation 
was consistent across the authority and 
wished to be informed of what the current 
process was, what methods were used 
and how materials were prepared for this 
purpose. 
 
Background information on the role of the 
Policy and Research Team in offering 
advice and guidance to internal service 
departments on consultation and 
research methodologies was received. 
The Panel has agreed to pursue this as a 
full Panel investigation.  
 
Panel has begun to scope its study. 
Members have requested Officers to 
circulate a copy of the Communications 
and Marketing Strategy for background 
purposes. Agreed to invite the Policy and 
Strategic Services Manager to attend a 
future Panel meeting. Scrutiny and 
Review Manager to circulate 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Copy of the Strategy 
was circulated to 
Members electronically 
on 18th October 2010. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This item appears elsewhere on the Agenda. 
The Policy and Strategic Services Manager 
will be in attendance at the meeting. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/12/10 

93



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
electronically to Members a copy of the 
study template. 
 

 
 
 
2/11/10 

 

CCTV Provision 
  
Panel expressed some concern at the 
recent budgetary announcement made by 
the Council to reduce CCTV provision 
within the District in 2011-12 with a view 
to ceasing the service from April 2012. 
Similar concerns were echoed by 
Members of the Economic Well-Being 
Panel.  
 

 
 
Report requested for 
submission to a future 
meeting.  
 

 
 
This item appears elsewhere on the Agenda. 

 
 

07/12/10 

 
 
 
2/11/10 

 

Cambridgeshire Local Investment Plan 
  
Panel has requested for a separate report 
on the implications of the Investment Plan 
upon local housing, to include the 
potential shortfalls in the delivery of 
affordable housing within the District, 
identify what housing is due to come 
forward and to include reference to the 
underlying links between housing and 
planning.  
 

 
 
Request submitted to 
the Head of Housing 
Services. Advised that 
the Investment 
Agreement was due to 
be signed off in March 
2011 and that the 
earliest the report 
would be available 
would be April 2011. 
 

 
 
Report anticipated in April 2011. 

 
 

05/04/11 

 
 
 

94



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 

6/7/10 
 

Gypsy and Traveller Welfare 
  
Agreed that gypsy and traveller welfare 
should be included within the Panel’s 
work programme, with a view to looking 
at the sites already established within the 
District. 
 

 
 
Report requested for 
submission to a future 
meeting. Following 
consultation with the 
Chairman, agreed to 
defer the report until 
further notice. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

TBC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
06/04/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership 
(HSP) 
 
The Panel has a legal duty to scrutinise 
the work of the HSP, with three thematic 
groups of the HSP falling within its remit. 
Arrangements for scrutinising the HSP 
are yet to be formalised between 
Overview and Scrutiny Members and 
Partners of the HSP, but in the meantime 
the Panel has received some background 
information on the work of the thematic 
groups as follows:- 
 
Huntingdonshire Community Safety 
Partnership / Inclusive, Safe and 
Cohesive Communities 
 
Panel received details of the Community 
Safety Plan 2010-11 and its strategic 
links to the Inclusive, Safe and Cohesive 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

95



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

05/10/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Communities thematic group of the HSP. 
Acknowledged that a multi agency 
approach to the work of the Partnership 
was adopted and that appropriate 
monitoring and accountability 
mechanisms were in place. 
 
Children and Young People 
 
Details of the thematic group’s outcomes 
and objectives have been received 
together with the latest report of the 
group, outlining its terms of reference, 
membership and current matters being 
discussed. The next report of the group 
has been requested for circulation, 
together with an update on progress on 
the action plan for the group which is 
currently in its development stages. Panel 
also agreed to extend an invitation to the 
relevant Executive Member to attend a 
future meeting. 
 
Health and Well-Being 
 
Panel is yet to receive background 
information on the work of this thematic 
group. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An update on the 
matters raised was 
circulated electronically 
to Panel Members on 
18th October 2010. 
Invitation to be 
extended to Executive 
Member in due course. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TBC 

 
 
 

96



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

6/04/10 
 
 

 
6/07/10 

 
 

 

Forward Plan 
 
One Leisure, St Ives – Proposals for 
Development 
 
 
Home Improvement Agency Review – 
Future Delivery Model Consultation 
 
 
Open Space Strategy 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Request submitted to 
the General Manager, 
Leisure. 
 
Request submitted to 
the Head of Housing 
Services. 
 
Request submitted to 
the Head of People, 
Performance and 
Partnerships. 
 

 
 
Deferred on the Forward Plan until January 
2011. 
 
 
Report anticipated January 2011. 
 
 
 
Report anticipated February 2011. 
 
 
 

 
 
4/01/11 

 
 
 
4/01/11 

 
 

 
1/02/11 

 
 
 
 

 97



98

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN
	5 STUDY: CONSULTATION PROCESS
	6 HUNTINGDONSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP VIEWS ON CCTV
	7 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
	8 CONSULTATION: EAST OF ENGLAND AMBULANCE SERVICE NHS TRUST
	AMBULANCE SERVICE CONSULTATION

	9 REPORT OF THE CABINET
	10 CAMBRIDGESHIRE ADULTS WELL-BEING AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
	11 WORK PLAN STUDIES
	12 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL WELL-BEING) - PROGRESS

